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In the spirit of reconciliation the Anglesea Surf Lifesaving Club Inc acknowledges the Traditional Custodians of 
the land on which our club stands and their connections to land, sea and community. We pay our respect to 
their elders past and present and extend that respect to all Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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AGENDA

Founded 1952, Affiliated with Surf Life Saving Victoria Inc & Life Saving Victoria Inc

72nd Annual General Meeting

Season 2022 / 2023

John Worrell Room, Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club

Sunday 16th July 2023 at 9.00am

ANGLESEA SURF LIFESAVING CLUB INC.



President 	 David Marsh
Secretary	 Matthew M Taylor
Vice President Operations	 Noel Langford
Vice President Lifesaving	 Rob Tennant
Club Captain	 Matilda Campbell
Director of Rescue Services	 David Simpson (August 2022-March 2023) 
	 Edward Mackay (March 2023-June2023)
Patrol Coordinator	 Will Pereira
First Aid Officer	 Matthew Anghie
IRB Manager	 James Betson 
Director of Member Development	 Lachlan Eaton
Director of Facilities	 Peter Williams
Director of Marketing	 Emily Watsford
Director of Youth Development	 Samuel Hume
Nipper Coordinator	 Patrick Haseler
Dolphin Coordinator	 Ivor Morgan
Starfish Nipper Coordinator	 Matilda Cameron
Director of Surf Sport	 Max Mauderer
Beach Captain	 Adam Martin 
Beach Team Coach	 Peter Van Miltenburg
Boat Captain	 Scott Tannahill
R & R Managers	 Christine Cardwell, Warren Clarke
Director of Finance 	 Angus Staines
Director of Administration	 Robert Murray
A Line in the Sand Editor	 Emily Watsford
History Officer	 Prue Weber

STAFF	
Club Manager	 Raylene Fordham
Membership Officer	 Jennie Mauderer
Office Assistant	 Lyn Gray
Business Officer	 Rachael Marano

FUNDRAISING LEADERS
Resilience Fund	 Ingilby Dickson
Golf Day Coordinators	 Shane Edmonds & Mark Gowans
DoorKnock Coordinator	 Fiona & Shem Fitzgerald
ROCK2RAMP	 Tom Cullen	

ANGLESEA SLSC
CLUB LEADERS 22/23
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GOVERNANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Chair Members	 Noel Langford
Members	 Lloyd Simpson
	 Peter Williams
	 Matt Symington
	 Kirsten Gray
HOUSE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Chair	 Noel Langford
Members	 Peter Williams
	 Raylene Fordham

FINANCE & RISK ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Chair 	 Noel Langford
Members	 Bruce Anderson
	 Angus Staines
SUPPORTERS GROUP ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Chair	 Geoffrey Elliott
Vice Chair	 Michael McConnell
Secretary	 Warren Clarke
Treasurer 	 Bernard Murray
Members	 Geoffrey Inman
	 John Turner OAM
	 Mark Gowans
	 David Kennedy
	 Robin Veale
	 Ronald Canale
	 Paul Hearn
	 Yvette Morgan
	 Noel Langford (ASLSC Board Representative)

FOUNDATION 	 Bruce Anderson 
Chair	 Angus Staines
Members	 David Marsh
	 David Kennedy
	 Graeme Weber
HONOURS & AWARDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Chair 	 Matilda Campbell
Members	 Matthew Symington
	 Prue Weber

ANGLESEA SLSC
ADVISORY COMMITTEES
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Board of Life Saving Victoria: 	 Liza Gelt
Honours & Awards Committee: 	 Warren Clarke
R & R Panel: 	 Warren Clarke
Discipline Committee: 	 Michael Martin AM
Honorary LSV History Officer: 	 Prue Weber
Aquatic Sports Council: 	 Max Mauderer
Life Saving Operations Council: 	 David Simpson Sep 22 – Mar ‘23, 
	 Edward McKay March ’23 - present
Membership & Leadership Development Council: 	 Samuel Hume
Council of Life Saving Clubs Representative: 	 David Marsh
Assistant Training & Assessment Officer Surf Coast Region: 	 Timothy Mason

LSV OFFICE BEARERS
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LSV Interstate Team:  	 Cooper Stanley, Samuel Johnson
LSV Interstate Youth Team: 	 Samuel Johnson
LSV Youth Pathway Team: 	 Jasmine Hume
LSV Assistant Coach Interstate Team: 	 Naantali Marshall
LSV Coach Youth Team: 	 Naantali Marshall

MEMBERS IN LSV TEAMS

Ian Begley, Robert Harding, Frank Herd OAM, Geoffrey Inman, Garry Johnson, Anne Ramsden

CLUB PATRONS

LIFE MEMBERS
C Anderson
J Baldock
C Brodie
R Bush*
R Canale
W Clarke
I Dickson+
D Eades
B Edmonds* 
Mrs M Edmonds
S Edmonds

G Elliott
J Fidler*
G Fletcher
M Gowans
W Hanlon*
R Harrisson*
G Inman
W James*
D Kennedy
Mrs H Lee-Williams
P Lunny ESM

C B Marsh*
D Marsh
Mrs J Marsh
L R Marsh*
E Martin*
M Martin AM
M McConnell
A McNaughton
B Murray
B Patterson
L Patterson*

G Pitcher*
C Porter
J Shears*
L Simpson
I F Smith*
D Solly
M Solly
A Sutherland
Mrs J Sutherland
M Symington
Mrs N Symington

G Weber
Mrs P Weber
P Williams
J Worrell OAM*
B Thompson*
J Turner OAM
P van Miltenburg
R Veale

* deceased
+ new life member

HONORARY MEMBERS
Azad Albarazi
Ian Begley
Wayne Cartwright
Edward College
Janice College
Maurice Conway

Lyn Elliott
Carl Fidler
Peg Fletcher
Robert Harding
Frank Herd OAM
Ben Homburg

Jennifer Inman
Darrell Johnson
Garry Johnson 
Marc Lionnet
Peter McGain
Lionel McWilliam

Jim Morgan
Margaret Pitcher
Petrina Porter
Anne Ramsden
Kevin Rigg
Doreen Titter

Barry White
Ron White
Mardi White
Jay Butki



I would like to start this report by saying how proud I am of 
the work Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club does each and every 
day.  We have provided over 70 years of surf lifesaving services 
at Anglesea and its surrounds, and our connection to the 
community we serve has never been this great and never have 
our services been more required.  As a Club we are meeting 
our beach patrolling requirements, which included responding 
to a mass rescue, we are extending ourselves by providing first 
aid services at community events and we are even teaching 
the community how to use defibrillators. All these activities 
ensure that we are entwined in the fabric of our community, 
and it is you, our dedicated members, who volunteer to 
make this all possible.  Your efforts enable our Club to 
deliver exceptional surf lifesaving services while protecting & 
strengthening our community.

My vision is that our Club’s volunteering culture gets even 
stronger.  That culture is what enables us to continue to fulfil 
our primary objective of meeting our patrol requirements and 
lifesaving responsibilities for the season.  The volunteering 
culture also provides us the platform to deliver additional 
services to our members and the wider community. To do all 
of this we need more volunteers.  

My priority is to have more of our qualified members 
participating in patrols.  That would be a big help to our small, 
but dedicated, patrol teams.  Anglesea SLSC is fortunate to 
have the most up to date lifesaving equipment, great facilities, 
the best behind the scenes support and the absolute best 
beach to patrol.  So, if you are a qualified Anglesea SLSC 
member, I ask you - What’s stopping you from patrolling?  

My hope is that a clear understanding of why we exist and 
why we train children, and adolescents, also flows through 
to Nippers and their parents.  We do as much as we can 
to educate and develop junior’ surf lifesaving skills in a fun 
environment where they can grow, form lasting friendships, 
and develop an affinity with the Club.  We do this in the hope 
that they will put up their hands one day to be future Club 
volunteers - patrollers, educators, competitors, and leaders of 
the Club. 

In terms of membership, we continue to maintain strong 
levels across all categories.  The Club’s retention of its existing 
members is sound, and we continue to attract new members 
across all categories.  This stability puts the Club in a good 
position to meet both its near and long-term lifesaving 
obligations.

Increased participation in surf sports continues to be an 
important part of our Club’s culture.  Apart from the thrill and 
enjoyment of competition, surf sport has direct links with fit 
and healthy life savers who patrol our beach.  While I may be 
somewhat biased, the rebirth of our IRB team is a significant 
development and one that will provide an alternative pathway 
and opportunities for our members, as well as improving our 
rescue readiness.  

As you’ll read in reports further on, we’ve had fabulous 
success in the master’s, juniors, surf boat and beach sections.  
We have opportunities for further development in the open 
and underage water sections, especially if we can retain the 
current youth competitors in U13, U14 and U15 age groups.  
Retention of junior competitors has been an issue across the 
State with a 40% reduction from 2020 to 2023.  Pleasingly our 
Club’s junior retention has not been impacted to this degree.

Much like last year, this season has seen some terrific results 
for our major fundraisers. Our Club members and the Anglesea 
community once again opened their hearts and wallets for 
the annual DoorKnock.  We had a great turn out for the very 
well organised Rock 2 Ramp and the annual Golf Day was an 
outstanding success.  The success of each of these initiatives 
was the result of hard work, good planning and preparation 
by each of the teams responsible.  My thanks go out to the 
leaders of these fundraising activities and to all of you who 
volunteered your time.

Over the year, our Club has had terrific support from ongoing 
and new sponsors.  We are also extremely grateful to the 
Club’s key supporters, who continue to donate funds, goods 
and services to ensure that the Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club 
can be the best it can be.  Our Club cannot exist without all 
your support so from the bottom of our hearts – THANKS!

During 2023 our Club was exposed to the financial challenges 
that all Australians experienced.  Despite significant cost and 
interest rate increases throughout the year the Club had a 
positive Operating Cash Flow and was able to meet its debt 
repayments.  Going forward the Club will focus on increased 
sponsorship and fundraising as part of a broader approach to 
mitigate further cost and interest rate increases.

A very personal thanks to the Board who have been incredible 
this year and have helped the Club navigate the many and 
varied issues we face from both internal and external sources.  
You give so much of your time, all without asking for anything 
in return! You are all amazing. To those Board members that 
have given so much and are stepping away from your roles, 
we thank you. To those joining the Board for the upcoming 
year we look forward to your energy and eagerness for the 
challenges ahead.

Finally, as noted above, volunteering is at the heart of what 
we do.  Please put your hand up and offer help when you see 
someone sweeping out the IRB shed, cooking on a BBQ on a 
hot day, or processing Nipper applications on sign up day.  

WE NEED YOUR HELP!

There is not much in life more rewarding than giving to your 
community.

David Marsh 
President

PRESIDENT’S  
REPORT
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2022/23 was a season where the Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club 
returned to a semblance of normality.  It was our first year without 
any lockdowns since the Covid-19 pandemic and didn’t we all 
enjoy it.  The Club was a hive of activity throughout the entire 
season, and it was rewarding to see our members:

•	 Enjoying the beach and keeping it safe for the broader 
community;

•	 Participating in training and development opportunities;

•	 Proudly representing our Club in junior and senior Surf 
Sports;

•	 Engaging in major Club fundraising activities, such as the 
Rock2Ramp, DoorKnock and the Golf Day;

•	 Socialising and having fun at various Club events, such as the 
Club’s 70th Anniversary, the Ladies Lunch and the Nipper 
family night;

•	 Congregating on the deck to relax, catch up, and take in the 
views across our amazing beach, grab a bite at Love House or 
share a beverage at Jimpy’s Bar; and

•	 Making greater use of our Club facilities.

Much of the above would not have been possible without the 
remarkable group of ASLSC members who volunteered their time 
and skills for the benefit of all our Club members, our sponsors 
and donors, the Club’s employees, and all our service providers.

As I noted last year, volunteering is the life blood of our Surf Club 
and I thank all of you who were able to step up during the year.  

Our Club strives to continuously improve in all areas. To do that we 
really need help from more of our members.  Your contributions, 
no matter how large or small, will benefit all our current and 
future members.  Your contributions also help you to connect with 
the Club, develop friendships and strengthen Anglesea’s overall 
Club Culture.  

I cannot over emphasise the importance of volunteering as part 
of our Club Culture.  We need strength in both these areas if we 
truly want to underpin our Club’s future.  Consequently, if you are 
a new member or one of our existing members who was unable 
to assist during the past years, I implore you to come forward and 
help out in the years ahead.  

The past season saw a successful launch of a new restaurant, 
Love House, which is located in the Ray Marsh Room at the Club.  
From its inception, the Love House menu and level of service has 
been a big hit with all age groups of our members and the wider 
community.  The Club appreciates the efforts of the Love House 
team, particularly Tom Lapenas, Simon Paramonov, and Tom 
McGrath in providing us with a quality offering that differentiates 
the Club from other dining alternatives in Anglesea.

During the year the Club spent considerable time negotiating a 
renewed lease over the land that the Club currently occupies with 
the Great Ocean Road Coast and Parks Authority (GORCAPA).  The 
Club is appreciative of GORCOPA’s efforts during this process and 
was pleased that we were able to secure an acceptable outcome.  
The renewed lease has the same expiry date, 31 December 2034, 
as the Club’s previous lease.   

During the year the Governance Committee received feedback on 
the proposed amendments to the Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club 
Constitution from legal counsel at Life Saving Victoria.  We are now 
working through an on-going engagement process with ASLSC 
members.  The Governance Committee will consider the feedback 
that it receives from these engagements before a revised draft is 
taken to the Board.  Ultimately, the Board will need to decide what 
amendments it supports being brought forward for members to 
vote on.

In closing this report, I would like to touch on the Club’s financial 
position.  First, I thank Richard Carr and Mark Griffin of West Carr 
& Harvey for their ongoing commitment to organise the Club’s End 
of Year Financials, on an in-kind basis.   Secondly, I note that the 
Club experienced significant cost increases during the last year.  
These increases included the cost of goods and services, utilities 
and interest rate charges and should be of no surprise to our 
members as it reflects what has taken place across the broader 
community.  Given that the prevailing inflationary environment is 
not expected to subside in the near-term, the economic outlook 
for Australia is challenging.  Consequently, the Board will increase 
its focus on new opportunities to increase Club revenue through 
fundraising and sponsorship, while it tightens its handle on Club 
expenditure.  

Please be assured that our Club is committed to remain financially 
viable and to provide our members and the broader community 
with quality lifesaving services and associated amenities.

Noel Langford 
Vice President - Operations

VICE PRESIDENT - 
OPERATIONS REPORT
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Into my first season in this role, I knew that our Club was a large 
operation but wow, I underestimated it! There are so many facets of 
our Club that all come together and whilst they might not always be 
perfect, they are pretty close to it. This is particularly impressive when 
you consider that the majority of work to pull it all together is done by 
volunteers and backed by our paid staff. Each and every member plays 
a part in this, and you should all be proud to be a part of it. 

Our Nipper program is something to hang our hats on. Over 500 
Nippers plus 24 Starfish Nippers over a two week period runs so well, 
and it is so great to walk along the sand, watching the kids having a 
blast and the parents and water safety all working together to deliver 
this program. Whilst they might not all turn into future lifesavers, 
they are all learning essential water safety skills that they can all take 
into the rest of their lives. The Starfish Nippers is nothing short of 
incredible and continues the Clubs commitment to inclusion for all. 
Well done to Patrick Haseler & Matilda Cameron on leading your 
teams through these programs. It is not just this period of time that 
it takes you to deliver the program, as there is a lot of work that goes 
into the preparation each year.

Our Youth Development continues to grow under the leadership 
of Sam Hume. For the competitors who head to these carnivals, 
it is a great milestone in your lives, and I hope you can look back 
on it fondly in future years with great memories. At Warrnambool 
for State Titles, there was a great show of camaraderie amongst 
our Club. There were some standout performances with lots of 
kids coming away with medals but most importantly, huge smiles 
especially our Under 9 boys winning silver in the Board Relay. I 
think they are still sleeping with their medals around their necks! 
The highlights for me were at night, sitting around as a Club, with 
everyone enjoying either Simon Spink’s spag bowl or Scott Tannahill’s 
paella and hearing how all the groups did each day. I think Simon & 
Scott may be booked in every year now!

Senior competition is coming along and continues to rebuild. Whilst 
our R&R teams have taken a much earned break from dominating at 
the top of their sport, our Youth competitors are coming along nicely 
with some great results across the board. Our boat crews had some 
up and down results with our girls having to succumb to injury mid-
season after some great results early. A keen U19 boys crew have 
now hit the water and will not only be great rowers but great Club 
members. Scott Tannahill already has them finalising their IRB crew 
awards and drivers are the next step. Our local men’s crew managed 
to take gold at Masters States and make the final in Reserves the 
next day after 3 weeks of training, so suffice to say, they are firing for 
next season already!

Over at the Aussie’s in Perth, our beachies dominated given 
their results in Victoria, they entered the pinnacle event high on 
confidence and didn’t disappoint. They ended up with great results 
yet again and show what a great long term program we have under 
the watchful eyes of our super coaches Peter Van Miltenburg and 
John Baldock with Adam Martin managing the team. 

Whilst this isn’t about singling out anyone, I’m going to do it anyway. 
Naantali Marshall’s results at the Aussies was simply amazing. A 
perfect score of 4 golds from 4 events is something for, not only 
Naantali, but the Club to be proud of. I’m sure it got to the point on 
the line where the others knew they were racing for second place, 
thus the dominance of Naant!

During the colder months, there is still plenty going on with our Club 
back into IRB racing! Well done to all involved. It has been great to 
see so much action continues, when our Club can often be quiet. 
The people involved are not just petrol heads, all of them are great 
contributors to the Club and I cannot wait to see this continue to 
grow for years to come. 

Patrols are the reason we have a Club. That is the simple way to look 
at why we are here. Yes, there are so many areas within the Club 
and there are many moving parts. However, we are a Surf Lifesaving 
Club first and foremost and we patrol the beaches around Anglesea. 
As we move past the COVID era, challenges around volunteerism 
are many. We are working on many ideas to rebuild our patrolling 
numbers in the ASR areas and to get better retention through our 
Bronze Camps and courses. The Patrol Captains having been meeting 
along with some of the Board to implement some ideas for the 
upcoming season and we are very excited for what may come of 
it. Special mention to both Lachlan Sallabank and President David 
Marsh who both did over 100 volunteer patrol hours this season. 
Simply amazing guys!

Lachie Eaton and his Member Development team continue to do an 
amazing job putting through all the new awards, the requals and the 
logistical nightmare that is Bronze Camp. We put through another 
53 new Bronze awards this year and as mentioned above, we are 
working on ways to transition more of these new Bronzies into ASR 
members for years to come.

As always, the work that the Supporters Group do to assist all of 
these areas is greatly appreciated. We all know that some of what we 
do can be quite costly and the Supporters Group are always there to 
lend a helping hand. They are always willing to help, and I know they 
get a kick out of seeing the Club flourishing.

To finish, I want to share something that happened this summer. If 
you want to have an idea on the impact of what patrols make to the 
beach going public, all you have to do is hear what happened on 
January 14 this year. It was a pretty normal summer day at Anglesea, 
small swell, packed beach and families enjoying a great beach day. 
All of a sudden there was a commotion in front of the boat ramp and 
before we knew it, we had a serious rescue on our hands. The work 
done by Patrol Captain Donald Bryce and his team was amazing to 
witness. There were a few other Club families down on the beach 
this day and everyone sprung into action, without hesitation. Special 
mention to Jan Marsh for looking after all of our kids! The way 
everyone worked together reminded me why we do this. Not only 
were there a few experienced patrol members, who were helping 
with the patients, there were a number of younger SRC members on 
their first patrol and they simply nailed it. It can be a very confronting 
scene whether it be your first or fifteenth rescue and the members 
did an amazing job. I hope that it inspires these younger members 
to continue patrolling and are around for a long time. Remember, 
because of the work you all did that day, these people got to go 
home to their families. You should all be very proud of this. If you 
weren’t there it may have ended very differently.

Here’s to a great season by all, like I said at the start, we know we 
have areas of improvement, but work has already started on making 
next season even better. We have a great Club that has a very storied 
history and I look forward to us all building on it, well into the future.

Rob Tennant, Vice President - Lifesaving

VICE PRESIDENT - 
LIFESAVING REPORT
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We had another busy season in the admin team with the return 
to some sort of normality. I am very proud of how our team has 
come together after what was a tough couple of years. We had a 
number of changes in the team and realignment of roles so we can 
best service our members. 

After 6+ years of service to the club Jaci Chin-Hewson decided to 
take up a new opportunity as the LSV Volunteer Support Officer 
for Western Region, we want to thank Jaci for her service and 
dedication to the administration role and the club.. , We look 
forward to continuing to work with Jaci in the future. 

Jennie Mauderer has stepped into the new role of Membership 
Officer with a dedicated focus on membership administration, 
nipper registrations, and member development. This is an 
instrumental role to our Club, ensuring all our membership data is 
accurate and we fulfill all our requirements to LSV. I want to thank 
Jennie for all her hard work all throughout the year.

We had two new faces join the team, Rachael Marano has joined 
the team in the Business Officer position, this role ensures the Clubs 
bookkeeping and financial administrative is accurate and up to 
date as well as support to the Membership Officer and the broader 
membership. Rachael has hit the ground running and is fitting in 
really well with the team. We look forward to continuing to evolve 
this role to provide the outcomes for the Club and members.

I also want to thank Lyn Gray for all her hard work in the 
Administration Assistant role, Lyn has also played an important 
role keeping the financial administration of the Club up to date 
and accurate while we went through the recruitment process for 
the Business Officer. Lyn will continue to support the Club on a 
casual basis supporting Rachel and the broader team.

Raylene continues to lead our team as Club Manager. Raylene’ 
s dedication to the team and the Club does not go unnoticed, 
working tirelessly to keep this Club running. From managing 
functions to coordinating with the restaurant, to managing our 
team, and everything in between, she is never far away lending a 
hand. We are lucky to have Raylene as our Club Manager and want 
to thank her again for all her hard work.  

The clear aim for the administration team is to ensure that the 
experience of our members and all stakeholders of our Club is 
a positive one, that we fulfill all our obligations to the lifesaving 
movement, and our members can keep the public safe on our 
great beach. We are always open to feedback or new ideas, please 
don’t hesitate to pop in and say hi.

With the team now settled into the realigned roles and working 
together we are looking forward to the upcoming season, there 
will be plenty of challenges but also some great opportunities. 

We look forward to continuing to work hard to create a supportive 
and positive environment for our members and the Anglesea Surf 
Life Saving Club. 

Robert Murray 
Director of Administration

ADMINISTRATION  
REPORT
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Sometimes the office is not quite where you expect!



TO OUR MEMBERS

First, I would like to acknowledge the support of the Club’s Board 
of Directors, our Club Leaders, our Members & their families as 
well as the Anglesea community over this past year. It was a year 
without any COVID shutdowns, which afforded us the opportunity 
to delve back into fundraising initiatives, Club programs & 
gatherings and several carnivals, to say the least. 

TO THE OFFICE TEAM

To the entire staff team, Jennie Mauderer, Lyn Gray and our new 
appointee, Rachael Marano, thank you for your commitment to 
the Club and embracing the transition of roles amongst the team. 
With Jaci Chin-Jewson leaving the Club to take up a position with 
Life Saving Victoria, this has afforded the Club an opportunity to 
think more broadly in terms of what is the need of the Club now 
and into the future. Especially as we need to adjust and pivot to 
the diverse uses of the new Club building. 

So, to introduce the new roles; we have Jennie Mauderer 
promoted to Membership Officer, which means anything 
membership related, from renewals, new members, nippers, 
carnivals etc, Jennie will be able to assist with any and all queries. 
Rachael takes on the role of Business Officer, which handles the 
tasks of basic accounts receivable/payable, managing the Club 
merchandise levels & shop etc, as well as supporting private hire 
events as needed. Lyn Gray has kindly agreed to stay on, post her 
kind commitment to support Jennie and I through summer 2022-
23, to take on the high-end booking tasks & payroll. It has been 
very heart-warming to witness all of the team embrace a flexible 
and can-do attitude towards any task, as we challenged ourselves 
to think outside the box, thus implementing a business continuity 
plan, that sees all 4 paid roles, share all of the tasks required to 
keep the Club functioning at its best 365 days of the year.

EVENTS

With a kind nudge by a few members at last year’s AGM, we have 
been challenging ourselves to find ways and places throughout the 
Club, that foster a “we are open for you” culture, whilst also trying 
to deliver the Club’s strategy of “Increased and Diverse” private 
hire uses of the John Worrell and training rooms. We know we 
still have a way to go, which again asks us all to embrace a flexible 
attitude while we find that sweet spot.

HOSPITALITY

The Club is very lucky to have such a wonderful restaurant 
offering, in my opinion. I enjoy eating in Love House regularly 
and even more, hearing the terrific feedback from patrons and 
locals. The partnership of Tom Lapenas, Simon Paramonov and 
Tom McGrath has certainly delivered a stronger and more stable 
hospitality offering than the previous year. Tom Lapenas leads a 
terrific team of staff, who are engaging, kind, polite and helpful. 
I appreciate that all of us can speak candidly and reflect on 
continual ways for improvement. The working relationship with 
Love House and Co, is one of mutual benefit and we look forward 
to continuing this. 

On reflection, I believe there is a theme starting to shine through. 
We are being asked, the Office & Hospitality Team, as well as our 
entire Membership, to adopt a can-do attitude that is flexible 
and adaptive, in the year to come and beyond.  I look forward to 
walking this journey with all of you.

And lastly, thank you everyone, for allowing me to part of this 
great Club. I truly love it and take huge pride in being able to 
contribute in my small way.

Raylene Fordham  
Club Manager

CLUB MANAGER  
REPORT
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With another brilliant season coming to a close, I have reflected 
on what has made our Club such a wonderful place to be. I’m 
particularly proud of a few key moments including the relaunch of 
a number of old traditions, the ongoing development of our youth 
members and the rollout of a number of training programs, have 
all made ASLSC a fantastic place to be a part of. 

Coming into our third season in our new clubhouse, the energy 
and excitement across all facets of the Club has become 
increasingly evident. We recognise the incredible effort put into all 
areas of our Club, including but in no way limited to, our Nippers 
and Starfish program, Bronze and SRC programs, competition 
teams and supporters’ groups. I would also like to officially thank 
and welcome the contribution from any new members this 
season, as well as all staff, volunteers and other members of our 
Club who all come together in such a tight knit community to 
boost the Club culture. It is not without the tireless efforts from all, 
that our Club functions so smoothly, and gives us the opportunity 
to grow and develop.

Coming out of the pandemic in early 2022, our 22/23 season 
kicked off with a bang. It was incredible to see just how quickly 
we were able to rebuild Club life again, by coming together as a 
community. We kicked off with another successful Bronze Camp, 
welcoming almost 53 new Bronze Medallion recipients into 
our patrol roster. This was the launching pad for the rest of the 
season’s training and development. 

This season also saw a huge focus on inclusion and recognition of 
women across the Club. With the return of the Ladies Luncheon, 
we heard from some wonderful speakers, inspiring women in 
our Club to smash their goals in work, life, our Club or lifesaving 
in general. This was shortly followed by our Pink Patrol which 
coincided with Anglesea Carnival, and it was fantastic to see 
both the patrol team and carnival volunteers decked out in pink, 
supporting our women in lifesaving and leadership.

The End of Season Awards night was once again a huge success, 
with a casual BBQ style format similar to last year. The night 

acknowledged the exceptional performances of many of our 
key team members across the season and allowed us to reflect 
on some of the fun times we shared over summer. I would like 
to personally recognise Will Pereira who received the Margaret 
Marsh Award, for Most Outstanding Club Member. His constant 
and continued dedication to our volunteer lifesaving service 
and Club culture is truly remarkable. Thank you to everyone 
who helped get this night off the ground, and to everyone who 
received an award.

Easter saw the re-launch of the Ding Alley Pro, an event, that 
despite some sub optimal swell (as described by our G-Board pro 
riders), brought together members from all areas of our Club and 
the broader Surf Coast community. We are already so excited 
to bring this event back next season as a fun way to engage our 
members and build Club culture. A special thank you to both 
Bailey Wraith and Will Pereira for all the work that went into this 
event and the support from Go Ride A Wave. 

The off season also saw the return of our IRB racing team under 
the support and guidance of Kristin Reither. The team have had 
a very successful season and it is this spirit and attitude, towards 
bringing back areas of our Club, that will set us up for success 
going into next year. 

This season has been an eye-opening, rewarding and exciting 
one in my first year as Club Captain. Following in the incredible 
footsteps of Marli Wilkinson, my biggest area of interest is to 
rebuild and strengthen our Club culture. I want to encourage our 
young members not to be held back and to create new traditions 
for our members coming through, from early teens to young 
adults. Our Club is what it is today because of the community 
we’ve built for over the last 70 years and the dedication of every 
club member to make this Club the best it can be. I very much look 
forward to what we have in store for next season, and the even 
bigger mark we can leave for future generations.  

Tilly Campbell 
Club Captain 

CLUB CAPTAIN  
REPORT

PAGE 11ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Our biggest project this past year was the refurbishment of the 
Ray Marsh Room. This involved replacing all of the windows with 
windows equivalent to those in the new building and fire rating 
the steel columns in the external walls. The latter was somewhat 
fortuitous, as most of the existing columns were missing a few 
centimetres, at their base, thanks to rust and required significant 
refurbishment. The cost of around $235,000 was fully covered via 
a State Government grant.

We again entertained the Anglesea CFA with several False Alarms 
thanks to Mike Martin’s excessive sweeping, the guys in the 
restaurant getting a bit carried away and finally, a bunch of bugs 
getting into one of the sensors.  Club Manager Raylene and myself 
really enjoy these “anytime of the day/night” callouts!!

Many thanks to Matt Taylor, Graeme Weber, Mike Martin, Geoff 
Elliot and Mick McConnell who all give freely of their time and 

expertise to keep both the building and the grounds in great 
shape. However, the tidiness of the club should not be left to a 
select few people. I urge all of you to lend a hand, particularly 
over Summer,wherever possible, to help maintain our facilities 
and share the workload amongst many. My role in overseeing our 
facility is made that much easier by the wonderful support I get 
from Raylene, Jennie, Lyn and Rachael in the office. 

I would also like to thank Tom Lapenas and his team at Love House 
as they continue to work closely with us to ensure the facility is 
maintained and available, as required to service both members 
and the wider community. 	

Peter Williams 
Director of Facilities

FACILITIES  
REPORT
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As another successful season comes to a close for our Club,  
I’d like to take some time to reflect on some of the highlights  
and give recognition to many of those who played a big part  
for the 22/23 season. 

I would like to give a special mention to outgoing Rescue Services 
Director, David Simpson, for the massive contribution he’s made 
to the Club over the years. Moreover, I’d like to thank Freddie 
Graham for all the work she’s done as patrol coordinator in 
previous seasons as well as the first half of this one. 

THE SEASON IN NUMBERS 
Preventative Actions	 4,253
Minor First Aids	 41* 
Major First Aids	 4
Rescues 	 14
Beach Attendance 	 57,319

Our relatively low number of first aids and rescues is a great metric 
for the success of the patrol team’s ability to remain vigilant and 
proactive in our management of the beach we all cherish. Despite 
this, an inevitability of having such a busy beach is that accidents 
will occur. 10 of our 14 rescues occurred on January 14th in a 
mass rescue. A number of our club members, both on and off 
duty, sprang into action to decisively come to the aid of those in 
distress, ensuring a good outcome for all.

Appreciation should also be shown to the Polar Bears and the 
Supporters Group for their continual support to the Club and 
to patrols. This season, they have very generously assisted with 
funding to ensure patrol members are well fed and looked after 
when they’re on the beach. On behalf of the patrol team, thank 
you for your continued assistance to our Club. 

I’m also extremely grateful to the Captain’s and Vice-Captains of 
our ASR’s this season. They’re the ones, who each week, ensure 
that they have sufficient numbers to keep our beaches safe, as 
well as providing invaluable knowledge, skills, and leadership to 
all patrolling members. Further, our limited number of ASR’s this 
season meant that (somewhat unfairly) the remaining 5 were 
picking up quite a bit of slack and doing extra hours. Well done to 
the Captain’s and Vice’s of each ASR for handling this so well.

ASR 1 – Lachlan Sallabank (C), Connor Huysing (VC)
ASR 3 – Hannah Shaw (C), Matt Anghie (VC)
ASR 5 – Donald Bryce (C), Marli Wilkinson (VC)
ASR 6 – Tilly Campbell, Lucy Wallace (Co-Captains)
ASR 7 – Edward Mackay (C), Will Ussher (VC)

A shout out to some exceptional individual efforts this season 
from Kristin Reither (80 hours), Connor Huysing (80), James Betson 
(91), David Marsh (106) and Lachy Sallabank (128.5). In saying this, 
every single person who contributed by simply showing up and 
taking part this season has unquestionably made a difference. 

THE RESCUE SERVICES TEAM
James Betson has been our tireless IRB Captain for more years 
than I can count. It seems like every hour that he doesn’t spend 
working is either fixing boats, racing boats, patrolling on the 
beach, or doing all 3 at the same time. 

Will Pereira flawlessly stepped into the difficult role of Patrol 
Coordinator this season. Picking up from Freddie Graham, Will 
was responsible for ensuring patrols were rostered, uniforms were 
dispersed, and every other odd job you could imagine. 

Matt Anghie is the First Aid Officer. This is a role Matt has held for a 
number of years and has never failed to impress with his knowledge 
and ability in the management of our first aid equipment. 

All these people put in countless hours, almost always behind the 
scenes, to ensure that our ability to supervise, and respond on the 
beach, is as seamless as possible. They do this all on top of already 
incredibly busy schedules. I’m so incredibly appreciative of the 
dedication they demonstrate to this Club.  

I’d like to close this report by extending my thanks to each and 
every one of you reading this. I understand that at times patrolling 
can feel like a bit of a thankless job. I also appreciate that on a 
cold rainy day in late April, you may not feel like you’re making a 
significant difference. But even if you may have just felt like you 
were sitting around not doing much, I can assure you this is far 
from the case. 

Whether you did 1 hour or 128.5 hours, you made a meaningful 
contribution to the culture of our Club and to the safety of our 
great beach. Furthermore, you did it out of your own time, and for 
that you should be commended. So, thank you to everyone who 
played a part in bolstering our patrols this season. 

I’m incredibly proud of the collective efforts of all our members, 
and your commitment to bettering both, our beach and our Surf 
Lifesaving Club. I am looking forward to the season to come.

Edward Mackay 
Director of Rescue Services

RESCUE SERVICES  
REPORT
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Lachlan Sallabank 	 128.25 hrs
David Marsh 	 106.71 hrs
James Betson 	 91.35 hrs
Connor Huysing 	 80.9 hrs
Kristin Reither 	 80.16 hrs
Annabelle Ussher 	 74.9 hrs
Mathew Angie 	 68.8 hrs
Donald Bryce 	 64.75 hrs
Liam Jones 	 64.55 hrs
Matilda Campbell 	 64.3 hrs
Mitchell Reither 	 64.29 hrs
Tilly Carrington 	 61.53 hrs
Edward Mackay 	 60.63 hrs
Ellie Morgan 	 58.59 hrs
Lucas Webb 	 58.22 hrs
Madeleine Bare 	 56.62 hrs
Cooper Fry 	 54.4 hrs
Marli Wilkinson 	 54 hrs
Matilda McIntyre 	 52.95 hrs
Matthew M Taylor 	 51.75 hrs
Thomas Cullen 	 48.58 hrs
Elise Langford 	 46.75 hrs
Jasmine Fry 	 46.4 hrs
Lughan Mullen 	 45.5 hrs

Oliver Jurcevic 	 44.97 hrs
Chloe Fitzgerald 	 44.92 hrs
Phoebe Gowans 	 44.9 hrs
Xavier Butler 	 44.47 hrs
Andrew Rechtman 	 43.3 hrs
Sebastian Crozier 	 40.97 hrs
Hannah Shaw 	 39.58 hrs
William Ussher 	 38.2 hrs
Lucy Wallace 	 38 hrs
Bronwyn Marsh 	 37.3 hrs
Madeline Davidson 	 37.25 hrs
Rachael Humphreys 	 37.2 hrs
Trent Chisholm 	 36.22 hrs
Amelia Blake 	 36.03 hrs
Victoria Hill 	 35.84 hrs
Tessa Simpson 	 35.07 hrs
Oliver Neo 	 34.72 hrs
Claudia Graham 	 34.12 hrs
Steven Christofi 	 34.08 hrs
Jeremy Farrington 	 30.75 hrs
Bella Haigh 	 30.62 hrs
Michael Martin 	 30.12 hrs
Rob Tennant 	 30.12 hrs

PATROL HOURS  
REPORT
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30+ PATROL HOURS SEASON 2022/23 INCLUDING WATER SAFETY



Starfish Coordinator Matilda Cameron along with all the trainers 
and families, again ran a highly successful Starfish program for 24 
Starfish this season, with fantastic engagement of the Starfish on 
the beach and in the water. Our Starfish Trainer of the Year was 
Jack Livingston who worked with Jeremy. Together they exemplify 
the great relationships that can form and are an absolute highlight 
of the program. 

The Summer Program was led by Big Nipper Patrick Haseler who, 
in his first year, did a great job stepping up to this role. Patrick’s 
relationships with the parents and kids, his enthusiasm, and his 
“can do” attitude are all central to his ability to bring everyone 
together to produce a fantastic program. Ably assisting Patrick 
this year was James Pollard who oversaw a team of workers 
responsible for the set up and pack down of each session, as well 
as the post session BBQs. 

A huge thank you also to Ben Gilbert who again coordinated the 
water safety for the Summer Program and to the many IRB drivers, 
crew, and water safety personnel that assisted with keeping 
our nippers safe in the water. A real highlight for the program 
was a visit from the Life Saving Victoria rescue helicopter who 
enthralled our nippers at one of our sessions this year thanks to 
the coordination of pilot and club member Wayne Cartwright. Club 
championships were held in tricky conditions again this year and 
we are really due for some light conditions next year! Our Family 
Night saw a large number of members attend at the football club 
for some food, company and presentations.

Matt Montemurro from the Marine Mammal Foundation attended 
one of our sessions again this year and engaged with several age 
groups on the diverse mammals that inhabit the oceans in and 
around Anglesea, and the impact of human litter entering our 
aquatic environments. Matt is an engaging speaker and brings 
great enthusiasm and knowledge to his presentations and we look 
forward to working with him in future years. 

Now into its third year, our local Nipper program ran through 
November-December, February-March. Attended by up to 30 
local Nippers, the program provides additional ways for local 
children and their parents to engage with the Club, improve 
their confidence and skills in the water, and strengthen the Club 

community. A huge thank you to Matt Taylor who coordinated 
and ran the program this year with help from Trina Porter, Peter 
Williams and a host of parents including Andrew Gooday and Mim 
Martin, who assisted with water safety, first aid and set up. Matt 
Taylor’s huge contribution to the Club over many years in his roles 
as Club Secretary, Coach, Official, Assessor and as a lead in both 
the local and summer Nipper Program were suitably recognised 
when he was awarded the Graeme Long Memorial Medal for 
Life Saving Victoria’s Volunteer of the Year in 2022. This award is 
an absolute highlight for Matt, and the Club, and incredibly well 
deserved. We are so grateful for your help and proud of your 
achievements, Matt.

The Club’s Youth activities were supported by a number of great 
sponsors including SG Hiscock, Great Ocean Properties, Ocean 
Road Landscaping, A-Z Plumbing, Big4 Anglesea Holiday Park, 
the Great Ocean Road Chocolaterie, Anglesea Fruitz, and New 
Balance. These sponsors help with providing the nippers, age 
managers and water safety with essential equipment such as 
rash shirts, hats and t-shirts. A huge thank you to each of them 
from myself and the Cclub for their contribution, which keeps our 
members seen, safe and shaded. I would specifically like to thank 
SG Hiscock who have been a major supporter of the Club Nipper 
program for the past 3 years and are concluding their sponsorship 
this season. Please support the sponsors of your Club if you are in 
need of fund management, property sales and purchases, holiday 
accommodation, local tradespersons, local food or activewear.

Many of the nippers who competed successfully across the 
season have regularly attended our Club Training Days (CTDs) 
throughout the year and over summer. In these sessions the 
focus is on having fun, learning foundational surf and beach skills, 
developing fitness and strengthening friendships. The Anglesea 
nipper competition team finished 6th overall at the Victorian 
Nipper Titles at Warrnambool on 10-12 March, which was a 
fantastic effort. Coaches Ivor Morgan, Naantali Marshall, Matt 
Taylor and I were exceptionally proud of the team comradery and 
effort we saw over three long competition days.  With a team of 
fewer than 40 competitors, Anglesea had some fantastic team and 
individual results. With enough members to make up two teams, 
our U10 girls won medals in Aqua Cam, beach relay, flags, long 
run, sprint, board relay, surf teams, wade, wade relay and surf 
race. Congratulations to Ella Robertson, Ava Macgowan, Charlotte 
Marsh, Tessa Parr, Mia Barbirotto, Maya Mcconnell, Amelia Charles 
and Edith Paterson. Our U11 girls were spearheaded by Kate 
Taylor who took home two gold and one bronze individual medals, 
and combined with her teammates Zoe Hume, Maddie Crozier 
and Gemma Jurcevic to come second in the Aqua Cam. Our U12 
girls won gold in the beach relay (Eliza Parr, Eloise Spinks, Ruby 
Macgowan, Mary-Jane Gilbert) and bronze in the board rescue 
(Eloise Spinks and Mary-Jane Gilbert). Eliza Parr won gold in the 
beach sprint and flags, and bronze in the long run, while Eloise 
Spinks won bronze in the flags. In the U13s, Summer Morgan won 
gold in the board, surf race, and iron, and combined with Ruby 
Macgowan to come second in the board rescue. In the U13 boys, 
Morgan Taylor had a fantastic finish to come second in the iron, 
which was a fitting end to his time as a nipper, and to all the effort 
that he has put into his training and racing over many years. 

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT  
REPORT
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At the Youth/Senior Victorian championships held at Ocean Grove 
on 24-26 February, Anglesea youth had some fantastic results 
over three long and trying days. In the U14s, Jas Hume won gold 
in the long run, silver in the iron and tube race, and bronze in the 
board and swim. Emily Thomas, Evie Theodore and Amelia Parr 
made various finals in the swim, board, iron and tube, while on 
the beach Evie and Amelia made the sprint final and Evie the flags 
final. In the U15s, Ellie Morgan won bronze in the tube and made 
finals in the surf race, board and iron. Jas and Ellie combined for 
gold in the board rescue and silver in the 2x1km run, and all the 
girls were just out of the medals in the other team races. 

At the Australian Championships in Scarborough, Perth, in the 
U13s, Summer Morgan came 15th in the surf race and 19th in the 
iron, while in the U14s, Jas Hume came 5th in the long run, 16th in 
the surf race and 17th in the iron. In the U15s, Ellie Morgan made 
the U15 board and iron semi-finals, and Charlotte Mead made the 
semi-final of the surf race. Ellie and Jas came 5th in the 2x1km 
run. Jas, Summer and Emily Thomas came 12th in the board relay 
final, and Charlotte, Ellie, Emily and Jas came 9th in the surf teams 
final. The Aussies was a great experience for our youth girls who 
represented the Club with immense effort and club pride.

Jas Hume and Fergus Spinks attended the Champion Lifesaver Day 
at Life Saving Victoria where members from different clubs came 
together to learn about different areas of surf lifesaving. The day 
included a competition named after former Anglesea and past LSV 
President, Mike Martin, testing each participants lifesaving skills, 
knowledge and fitness. 

Summer Morgan and Morgan Taylor attended the Life Saving 
Victoria U13 Development Camp, and Sophia Mazzotta attended 
the U15 Camp. Very positive feedback was received from each of 
them. These camps are a great opportunity to develop leadership, 
interpersonal and teamwork skills while also broadening their 
understanding of lifesaving. 

In 2023, 13 members between their SRC and Bronze years 
attended a 4-day Gap Year program in mid-January. This program 
provided the opportunity to refresh first aid, resuscitation and surf 
skills through fun and immersive experiences and social events. 
Club member, Rowena Webster, who is a three time Olympian 
and Olympic bronze medallist, and former Australian water 
polo team captain, spoke to the group on the opening morning, 
offering inspiring stories and lessons from her journey through surf 
lifesaving and elite sport. Paramedic Jacqui Cook and Club Captain 
Tilly Campbell assisted with some of the training sessions, and I 
would like to thank Rowena, Jacqui and Tilly for their assistance in 
this year’s program. 

A huge thank you to the Supporters Group who once again 
provided funding for the Youth area of the Club in supporting 
the Starfish Nipper Program through the Hilton White Estate, the 
competition team and Summer Program through the Gladys Stott 
Estate, and the local Nipper program with training and operational 
expenses. In 2022-23, we were able to purchase a new ski, 
fibreglass nipper boards including two board rescue boards, full 
size board rescue malibu’s and 2 paddles. The Supporters Group 
also assisted at the Family Night, setting up/packing up at events 
and running some much-loved BBQs. I would also like to thank 
Yvette Morgan who has worked tirelessly in her role as Nipper 
Team Manager in coordinating entries, water safety, officials and 
carnival set up and pack up workers. She has done a magnificent 
job over the past 3 years and will be stepping down from this 
position for 2023-24. 

The 2023-24 season is already approaching, and I would like to 
encourage each parent to consider how they can contribute to the 
youth area of the Club, to continue to support our children in their 
development and growth into future lifesavers. Please contact me if you 
have any questions or want to discuss ways in which you can assist.

Sam Hume 
Director of Youth Development
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Season 2022/ 2023 was a brilliant season for the Anglesea Surf 
Lifesaving Club Nippers program. Taking over from Matt Keenan 
at the helm, initially I was quite apprehensive with the task 
of being asked to be the Big Nipper, however I was incredibly 
proud that the Club entrusted me to do the role well. Had it not 
been for members such as Matt, Naant, Sam, Ivor, Matt T etc, 
I would not have accepted the role. The Club should be proud 
and acknowledge the wealth of knowledge, talent, and positive 
attitude,Cthese core members show. The hours allocated to the 
club during their holiday’s is extraordinary.

We had 402 Nipper registrations, 22 Starfish Nippers and 40 SRC 
registrations for the 2022/2023 season. There were new LSV 
registrations criteria for Age Group managers which essentially 
meant a stricter credentialing process for members to be AGM/
AGL. Having started the process of allocating AGM/AGL back 
in February 2022, I was very comfortable with the calibre and 
number of members offering up their leadership. 

As a per capita club, our results in the competitive sense are 
remarkable. At the competitions, we had excellent results which 
the Club needs to continue to recognise. This was largely driven by 
the coaches, whom Ivor and Yvette Morgan are integral to leading. 

The participant survey results are very pleasing.  
Three points to highlight are:

1.	 75% of participants ranked the program ‘most favourable’.
2.	 85% of participants ranked their growth in confidence as 

‘most favourable’.
3.	 90% of participants would recommend the program as ‘most 

favourable’. 

Overall, the results are brilliant, and I am happy with the results. 
There are perhaps two points I took from the results:

1.	 Potentially a need for more surf education,  
(how to read a rip etc).

•	 Surf Education. Many of the Age Group Managers and 
Leaders are parents with limited surf experience and whilst 
they are very willing and able to help, they may not have 
experience on rip recognition etc. I would welcome a 
voluntary session(s) outside of nippers where an experienced 
leader could pass on some education.

2.	 More use of the Club rooms socially.

•	 Looking forward, we will continue to create and deliver social 
opportunities, both at the Club and the broader community.

To my knowledge, we had one injury, with a board to the face. The 
child was fine, although did see a medical practitioner. 

This year we reintroduced the BBQs which were very popular. 
My goal was to increase the community feel which, over COVID 
understandably, took a hit. The snags were all sold out every 
session, and this was with an increasing supply, hence the demand 
was there. Not only did this add value to the community but this 
also added approximately $6K net profit for the Nippers.

The new boards were well received and respected however we can 
do with more boards. Some of the older boards are waterlogged 
and there is a significant difference between the old and the new 
boards. We alternate between age groups and board access. This 
is largely due to board availability and the number of boards in the 
water. It would be great if there is a budget for more boards.

There is an amazing spirit within the greater group of parents. 
Everyone, if asked, is willing to help. Many don’t know where or 
what they can do to help, hence unless specifically asked, will not 
put up their hands. However, I have found that simple direction 
and requests yields favourable responses. There is a great feeling 
amongst the Nipper group.

A long-lasting question remains. How to keep the kids in the sport 
once they complete the Nippers program, with competing sports 
etc. as they get older. I don’t have this answer. Having 40 do SRC is 
a great result and hope to see this continue into next season.

I will put up my hand to run Nippers again this year. The program 
ran very well with lots of helpers and we are keen to continue to 
help and support the ASLSC.

I would like to thank Peter Williams, Jennie Mauderer and Raylene 
Fordham for their help and support, simply superb and always 
willing. 

Patrick Haseler 
Big Nipper

NIPPER 
REPORT
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CLUB CHAMPION
RESULTS 2022/23
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1st 2nd 3rd Age Group  
Managers Award

U7 Female Jade Orchard Vivian Ryan Sylvie Fenton Matilda Reed

U7 Male Oscar Walsh Nathan Earey Albert Grayson 
Jude Knights

Oscar Drake

U8 Female Asha Wadey Tessa McDonnell Samantha Waldie Imogen McGuire

U8 Male Patrick Walker Louis Fanning Finn Steinfort Will Checuti

U9 Female Abigail Halpin Nilufer Hansen Anna Pollard Bella O’Sullivan

U9 Male Xavier Van Dyke Otto Britton Jack Halpin Archer Long

U10 Female Ella Robertson Ava Macgowan Mae Gross Beatrice Fenton

U10 Male Rupert Walker Freddie Gilbert Hunter Orchard
Will Simpson

Xavier Murray

U11 Female Kate Taylor Zoe Hume Isabelle Inglis Evelyn Eaton

U11 Male Hugo Britton Jake Reed Byron Morgan Sam Shenfield

U12 Female Lucy Reed Eloise Spinks Eliza Parr Georgia Neale

U12 Male Max Fraser Jonathan Farrow
Sebastian Tannahill

Edward Pollard Tim Wuchatsch

U13 Female Caitlin Haseler Ava McConnell Summer Morgan Claire Waddington

U13 Male Morgan Taylor Banjo Wilson
Harry Hose

Julian Laudato Ryan Fraser

U14 Female Jasmine Hume Amelia Parr Evie Theodore

U14 Male Fitzy Gilbert James Keenan



This season we were lucky enough to welcome 5 new Starfish and 
their families to the Starfish Nippers and Anglesea community. 
This gave us a total of 24 Starfish who excelled throughout another 
season of Nippers. Each Nipper strived to reach their personal 
best. With the support of their trainers, it was possible for each 
and every one of them to thrive in our inclusive, supportive, 
encouraging, safe and fun environment. This environment is made 
possible because of many different people and their involvement 
and impact on our program. 

Our Starfish Nippers continue to shine bright as they run, 
flag, wade and board their way through our 8 sessions. Their 
confidence and knowledge continue to grow as they develop 
their beach and water safety skills. Their communication and 
relationship skills also grow and develop as they forge strong, 
trusting partnerships with their trainers and friendships with other 
Nippers and their families. 

These partnerships are made possible by the incredible group of 
trainers who support the Nippers. Their dedication, commitment, 
enthusiasm and love for the program does not go unnoticed and 
is instrumental in the running of the program. Not only are the 
trainers dedicated but they are all kind, generous and supportive 
people, who volunteer their time to make this program possible.

Henrietta Graham, Alice Johnston, Ezra Polykandrites, Jared 
Huysing, Will Garon and Dylan Schembri all completed their Radio 
Operations Requalification this season. Thanks to Mike Martin and 
his interactive and engaging techniques, all Nippers successfully 
requalified. It is a joy to see the sense of accomplishment they all 
exude after their efforts.  

A fun and unexpected highlight for many was the landing of the 
Westpac rescue helicopter on the Anglesea Main beach. It’s not 
a helicopter landing you usually want to have on your beach, but 
this was an exception. The pilot and his crew kindly took the time 
to talk to everyone about the incredible work they do, in their 
rescue helicopter. It is with thanks to them and Westpac that we 
know we are safe in the water.

Members of our group, along with their friends and family, 
enjoyed connecting with each other and the Anglesea community 
by participating in the Anglesea Motor Yacht Club Roo Run’s 
Janet Jones Classic event. With thanks to the Anglesea Golf Club, 
we also enjoyed a day out in the community, as a group, in their 
picturesque and kangaroo filled grounds. The Lighthouse Classic 
walk was another chance for us to connect as a group, off the 
beach, and take part in a meaningful event. We walked and talked 
our way to the Aireys Lighthouse which we touched in honour 
of Janet Jones. These events give our Starfish the opportunity 
to engage with and explore the wider Anglesea community and 
connect with one another off the beach. 

This year Patrick Haseler took on the Big Nipper role. A huge 
role to undertake and I thank him for doing so. I am grateful for 
his support and interest in the Starfish program and for always 
checking in to see how was is travelling. His effervescent and 
encouraging leadership was greatly valued and appreciated. 

There is such a strong team of support within the club and this 
support always extends to the Starfish program. Thank you to 
Sam Hume, David Marsh, Matt Taylor, Peter Williams, Jennie 
Mauderer and Raylene Fordham, who all work tirelessly to ensure 
the smooth and successful running of our Club and the summer 
Nipper program. A big thank you also to James Pollard and his 
equipment team for playing Tetris every morning to fit all our 
boards on to the ute and delivering them to the beach. 

The team spirit and inclusion in our Club does not go unnoticed 
and is hugely appreciated. 

John Russell and the Anglesea Uniting Church have been proudly 
supporting Starfish Nippers for many years and we thank them for 
their continued support, interest and generosity in our program 
and all that it stands for. 

This year the Anglesea Supporters group very generously reached 
out to us, to express their interest in supporting our program. We 
thank Geoff Elliott, Chair, and the Supporters Group members for 
their interest in, and willingness to support the Starfish Nippers 
program. Working with them has been exciting and with their 
approval of our proposal, the impact on the program will be 
invaluable and we thank them for their generosity and support. 

We thank Hilton White Estate for their continuing financial support 
of Starfish Nippers at Anglesea. It is because of these contributions 
that our program can continue to grow and develop. 

Janet Jones is a name that will always be remembered, and her 
presence is felt with us on the beach. We will never have enough 
thanks for Janet and everything she gave to the program to make 
it what it is today. We are all on the beach because of her and we 
strive to make her proud and honour her with all that we do.  

There are now 50 Starfish programs being run across the world, 
from Victoria to France and everywhere in between. It is incredibly 
encouraging and uplifting to see this number climb each and every 
year. 

Matilda Cameron 
Anglesea SLSC Starfish Nippers Coordinator 

STARFISH NIPPERS  
REPORT
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The 2022/2023 season has been a great success for competition.  
A new wave of up and coming juniors, an IRB racing team, 
continued success in the boats and beachies, Anglesea is most 
certainly on the rise. 

It’s always been an exciting prospect for Anglesea to return to the 
competition powerhouse we once were and this season more 
than ever we have pushed one step closer to that. This season saw 
a great increase in participation from the Club, especially at the 
Anglesea Carnival. I speak on behalf of all the competitors there 
on that day. The excitement, pride, courage and determination 
displayed was astounding. Everyone showed up, towed the line 
and that’s what it’s all about. 

We thank the countless time and effort of all involved, who 
provided the support for our athletes to race. With next year’s 
season on the horizon there is no better to time to get involved. 
All ages and abilities are welcome, and we would love to see you in 
the mighty green and white next year.  Go Anglesea!!

Max Mauderer 
Director of Surf Sports

COMPETITION  
REPORT
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The 2022/23 season was very successful for the Anglesea Beach 
team showing improvement after a strong foundational season 
last year and with many new competitors donning the green 
and white cap. It was fantastic to have a full calendar of racing 
with athletes competing in 6 local carnivals as well as State and 
National championships.

Throughout the year we added several new talented beachies. 
Julia Phillips and Bella Robinson strengthening our female teams’ 
and contributing to the team’s success at Vic’s and Aussies. 
We also had local appearances throughout the season from 
Max Zicman, Kane Emery, Will Gossan and Alex Shears-Jones. 
Unfortunately, our Team Captain, Saxon Beale, was ruled out for 
the entire season by the most innocuous foot injury at the very 
first carnival.

In early January, Sam Johnson and Cooper Stanley saw their 
impressive performances in the early rounds of competition pay 
off and secured themselves a trip to NSW representing Victoria at 
the Interstate and Summer Surf Series competitions. This saw them 
pitted up against the top athletes from across Australia in four back-
to-back days of full and intense competition. We congratulate these 
two on their amazing achievements during this time, proving that 
Anglesea Beachies can take it to the other states. 

The Anglesea beach team had a sensational State Championships 
with every member of the beach team heading home with a 
medal, this helped push Anglesea into 6th place in the overall club 
points score. By the end of the weekend the team had won an 
impressive 12 Gold, 7 Silver & 2 Bronze medals along with many 
other finalists and placegetters. 

Some of the notable performances were: 

•	 the two Open Mixed Beach Relay teams finishing 1st (Kate 
Walker, Julia Philips, Sam Johnson, Patrick Kenny) and a very 
close 4th (Connor Huysing, Cooper Stanley, Bella Robinson, 
Marli Wilkinson); 

•	 Kate Walker claiming her 2nd Open Women’s Beach Flags title 
in succession along with 2 gold medals in the relay events and 
her impressive 2nd place in the Open Women’s Beach Sprint;

•	 our group of talented junior boys Cooper Stanley, Sam 
Johnson and Patrick Kenny winning 11 medals between them 
across both age (U17, U19) & open events which included 
Patrick Kenny winning both the Open and U19 Men’s Beach 
Flags; 

•	 Julia Phillips with an outstanding win in the Open Women’s 
Beach Sprint along with wins in the Open Mixed Beach Relay 
& Open Women’s Beach Relay and a bronze medal in the 
Open Women’s Beach Flags; 

•	 Having 4 competitors in the Open Men’s Beach Flags final as 
well as 5 competitors in the Open Men’s Beach Sprint final, and

•	 of note for the entire weekend was the performance of 
Mitchell Reither in the U17 & U19 men’s beach relay events, 
with his safe baton changes and steely determination he 
brought it home for both teams to win gold – the elation on 
his face (and his dad Kristen) was priceless and gave the team 
such joy.

After an overwhelmingly successful State Championships, a team 
of eight Anglesea Beachies and support crew headed across to 
Perth to test themselves against the highest level of competition, 
one could ask for. Our competitors were decked out with 
amazing merchandise thanks to our sponsors Cotton On, looking 
professional and showing off our wonderful club colours. Our team 
also received extremely generous sponsorship from Morgan’s 
Financials, who assisted us with fantastic accommodation (which 
is always challenging when the Aussies are in Perth) – thank you so 
much to Jill Murray in organising this. 

In summary, the team enjoyed their most successful Aussies in 
over 25 years by having 8 finalists – in all age groups, both male 
& female and in both teams’ & individual events. Of recognition 
must be to our two medal winning performances:

Patrick Kenny – 3rd, U17 Men’s Beach Sprint, and

Julia Phillips, Cooper Stanley, Kate Walker, Patrick Kenny – 3rd, 
Open Mixed Beach Relay.

It must be said that our sprinters led the way over the 3 days of 
competition:

Julia Phillips – was certainly one of the favourites for the Open 
Women’s Beach Sprint after winning each of the heat, quarter 
and semi with blistering runs in each. The hotly contested final 
saw Julia crowned as the 4th fastest beach sprinter in Australia 
which is an unbelievable feat. This together with her Bronze 
medal as part of the Open Mixed Beach Relay and along with her 
teammates Bella Robinson, Kate Walker and Stephanie Larkin 
finishing an amazing 6th in the Open Women’s Beach Relay.  Julia’s 
improvement after joining the Anglesea beach team has been 
amazing for everyone involved and we can’t wait to see what she 
does next year

Kate Walker - whilst we know Kate for her strength in flags, Kate 
blitzed the soft sand in career best sprinting form which secured 
her first ever Open sprint semi-final and ranking her in the top 12 
in Australia. Like Julia, Kate was also an integral team member of 
the successful Mixed Beach Relay and Open Women’s Beach Relay 
teams.  

BEACH TEAM  
REPORT
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Cooper Stanley – as a first year U19 and having concentrated on 
school swimming for much of the year, Cooper’s performance 
by making the final of the U19 Men’s Beach Sprint, where he 
finished 8th, was one of the most outstanding achievements of 
the season. Cooper made 3 finals at the Australian Championships 
– 8th U19 Men’s Beach relay, 3rd Open Mixed Relay and 5th U19 
Men’s Beach Relay (together with Sam Johnson, Patrick Kenny and 
Pierre Lee, although the team were unfortunately disqualified) – 
well done Cooper on an amazing weekend, all that training and 
dedication certainly paid off.

Patrick Kenny – also made 3 finals over the weekend, both in 
individual and team events and claimed 2 Bronze medals - a 3rd in 
a highly contested U17 Men’s Beach Sprint and as a team member 
in the Open Mixed Beach Relay. Patrick was also a member in the 
U19 Men’s Beach Relay team who made the final and was all so very 
close to making the U17 Men’s Beach Flags final but missed out by 
one spot, being eliminated in the very last run of the semi-final.

Sam Johnson – it was amazing to have Anglesea represented in so 
many finals at the beach sprint track, and no more so than when 
we had both Patrick and Sam in the final of the U17 Men’s Beach 
Sprint. Sam’s hard work paid off by also making 3 finals over the 
weekend that made him the 8th fastest beach sprinter in Australia 
and 6th best flagger. Making any beach flag final at the Australian 
Championships is truly an amazing performance, and so Sam, you 
should be very proud of your achievements over the season. 

I am sure the athletes would agree that they could not have had 
such a successful weekend of competition without the amazing 
support from Jill Murray, Jill Kenny, Russell Johnson and Robert 
Kenny. These dedicated group of parents ensured that all team 

members (and coaches!) were able to compete at their pre-
eminent level: transporting everyone to & from the beach each 
day, organising and providing dinner each night at our fantastic 
accommodation, making sure we had all the right gear on the 
beach (those chairs were a god send!), etc, etc. Not only do the 
beach competitors thank you but the entire membership of the 
Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club congratulates you for your devotion 
to what we all love – Surf Life Saving.

Congratulations must go to Sam Johnson who won the Bruce 
Thompson Award this season as well as the Margaret Worrell 
Award – a tremendous effort by Sam and reward for your 
consistency over the season.

Overall, this season was a massive success with too many amazing 
moments to count. One thing that can be said for certain, is that 
the improvement athletes have shown was incredible with so 
many career firsts for athletes both young and senior. None of this 
would have been achieved without the amazing guidance of Peter 
Van Miltenburg and John Baldock – we certainly missed you John 
at the Aussies this year. The team is so fortunate to be under the 
guidance of these talented coaches. We will forever be in debt to 
them for all their time and effort that they dedicate to us. Without 
them the Anglesea Beach team would not have had the success 
this year, that they did. In fact, without them there wouldn’t be a 
beach team at all. I’d also again like to thank our sponsors Morgans 
Financials and Cotton On for helping our athletes achieve the 
success they did. Well done to everyone this season, you’ve made 
the Club extremely proud.

Adam Martin  
Beach Team Captain
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This past season saw our Boat Section deliver another solid 
performance. Five crews represented the Club at carnivals, that 
stretched as far as Sydney, on five separate occasions and of 
course the ridiculous trip to Perth. Then we had eight local State 
based carnivals, including the State Championships at Ocean 
Grove.

Our season began with the Open Women “Lightning” once again 
taking on the Ocean Thunder series. This event attracts the best 
crews from around the country and is regarded as a must do for 
any crew who thinks they have a chance to win, at the pointy end 
of the season. On four separate occasions, the crew travelled to 
Dee Why which meant return flights and the round trip towing 
the boat, all self-funded, by each individual crew member. 
Unfortunately, the crew copped a massive hit in Round 1 which 
resulted in all four rowers sustaining injuries which ultimately saw 
the crew withdraw from competition, and end their season, early 
February. 

Rob Tennant put together a group of locals who contested the 
Masters and Reserve Men. Team “Sashimi” trained and raced well 
all season, which saw them take Gold in the 160+ Masters and 
finalists in Reserve division at States. Will be great to see these 
guys back next season. 

This season was our Under 23 Men’s transition year from both 
Under 19 and finishing year 12, so for the “Storm”, it was a case 
of training and racing when they could. The crew are working on 
stepping up the training levels and settling into the next two years, 
working hard in the grade.

When conversations are about which crews have stood the test 
of time, one crew always comes to mind. Yes, the “Pirates”. On a 
similar transient season to the “Storm”, the boys who have been 
the State’s best Under age crew for the past seven years have each 
transitioned from Uni to careers that has made training as a crew 
difficult. A close finish saw the boys take the Bronze Medal in Open 
Men at the Vic’s against two of the best crews in the country. 
Special mention of William Popovic who stepped up and rowed in 
both the Storm and Pirates.

Then we were graced by the presence of our newest crew, The 
Mighty “Cannon’s”, our Under 19 young guns, who in their first 
season have done so much, and have been so good, at everything 
they’ve done. From training their butts off, to beginning their 
learnings of the surf, to doing heaps of Patrol hours, to working 
all day on the Beach Barbie for the Juniors Carnival and more. The 
boys came home from the States with their first medal, a Bronze. 
To see how happy they were has me wondering what will happen 
when they win the right colour medal.

Once again, we must thank our fantastic supporter base who, 
without their help, we would not have any possible way of running 
such a quality Boat Section. Thank you to the following:

•	 Adam Morgan from Glass Metal Industries. We thank Adam 
for his generosity in again supporting our crew with covering 
the $5,000 entry fee for Ocean Thunder and a $10,000 
donation towards our new boat.

•	 David Eades for his donation which paid for a much needed 
2nd hand boat and trailer we bought from Noosa Heads. 

•	 Rob Tennant and Abacus Visual who covered the costs of sign 
writing our boats and oars.

•	 Peter King from ASP Global who managed and covered 
the cost of getting our 40ft Container from Anglesea to 
Scarborough and back.

•	 The Anglesea SLSC Office Staff and in particular Jennie for 
all the behind the scenes work she does with ensuring our 
entries are put in on time, every time.

Next season will see us racing in a new boat with some new 
rowers and a renewed intention to build the Anglesea SLSC name 
and spread the word far and wide that we are not just a great Boat 
Club, but we are a Great Club. Our Crews will play a big part of the 
Clubs future and along with all the Club’s Rowers and Sweeps, I 
wish to again thank the Club Board, Supporters, and Sponsors, for 
we would be nothing without your support. 

Scott Tannahill 
Boat Captain

SURFBOAT  
REPORT
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After the highs of three Rescue & Resuscitation SLSA Titles in 2022, 
season 2023 was a little more subdued with teams taking a low-key 
approach and taking some time out for a 2024 Aussie come back.

This season R&R Team Members included.

•	 Melissa Bird
•	 Callum Brennan
•	 Warren Clarke
•	 Mikaela Dale
•	 Alexandra Madeley
•	 Emma Moore
•	 Ryan Nolan
•	 Bronwyn Marsh
•	 Lucas Waters
•	 Marli Wilkinson

Coach – Christine Cardwell

Officials – Warren Clarke, Alexandra Madeley, Mikaela Dale, 
Christine Cardwell, Emma Moore

Support Crew – Karen & Sai Dale

There was a significant focus this season of supporting Victorian 
clubs with R&R at the LSV Coaching Development Workshops 
facilitated by Christine.

The following Anglesea members demonstrated drill, assisted with 
varying coaching approaches, and shared experiences during these 
workshops; Mikaela Dale, Alex Madeley, Melissa Bird & Warren 
Clarke. Their input and support is invaluable. 

Due to work and personal commitments, as well as injuries, 
Anglesea only had teams competing at Geoff Waters OAM Memorial 
R&R Carnival at Lorne & Victorian titles at Ocean Grove this season.

The R&R teams welcomed the energy and support of two former 
R&R’ers in Bronwyn Marsh & Marli Wilkinson. Having Bronwyn 
and Marli on boar,d we were able to ensure we could contest 
the Open Women’s category and therefore, able to enter our full 
complement of teams.

Marli took her U/15 R&R Gold medal experience into swimming 
in the surf belt with flying colours, with Bronwyn resuming her old 
position of No 3 in true style, whilst getting lots of support and 
cheering on from husband Ducky and kids. 

Although a small group this season, we continued to enjoy our 
friendships, the team aspect, having fun and representing the 
green & white in top fashion.

2022/23 Results: 

Geoff Waters OAM Memorial R&R Carnival – Lorne, Sunday 
February 13th, 2023
1st Open Mixed 5 person
1st Open 6 person.

Victorian Championships – Ocean Grove, Saturday 25th 
February 2023
1st Open Women’s 5 person
1st Open Mixed 5 person
1st Open 6 person. 

 Disappointingly, even though no teams competed at Aussies this 
year, Christine Cardwell and Warren Clarke both officiated at Youth 
& Senior Competitions in Scarborough WA.

In true Anglesea spirit Christine & Warren also assisted Scarborough 
SLSC R&R teams in their preparation for their first Aussies in ten 
years – R&R has made a resurgence at Scarborough SLSC.

At the Official’s dinner Warren Clarke was presented with his SLSA 
forty-year service award for officiating – a wonderful achievement 
to a loyal and dedicated member who gives so much support not 
only to R&R but to many facets of the Club and behind the scenes.

In a final note, Nipper parents if you know of two mates who 
would like to try 2 person R&R (pathway event to 5 person) please 
contact Christine or Warren.

If there are any youth and senior members who would like to be 
part of an iconic lifesaving event in a team environment, we would 
like to welcome you – please message the office and they will put 
you in contact.

An exceptional result for the R&R section is without doubt the 
Open 6-person team winning the 2022 Victorian Sports Awards, 
AED Team of the Year. This is indeed a great achievement with 
significant numbers of nominations across sporting codes in 
Victoria. Congratulations to Alex, Ryan, Rhianna, Lucas, Mel and 
Callum for this incredible achievement and to Christine for her 
nomination in the Gallagher Community Coach of the Year award.

Christine Cardwell 
Anglesea R&R Coach

RESCUE & RESUSCITATION  
REPORT
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The 2022 Burson Rock2Ramp Ocean Swim was conducted on 
Wednesday 28 December for the 27th time at Point Roadknight 
Beach, Anglesea. The event attracted 863, swimming in calm 
conditions for much of the event.

Clancy Luscombe won the men’s 2.5km event at the start of the day 
with a time of 00:29:50 by one second to the 2021 2.5km winner 
Matt Gilling (00:29:51) with Harry Manolopoulos (00:29:52) in third 
place. In the women’s 2.5km event, Clare Milligan backed up from 
her 2021 win to take out the event in 2022 in 00:34:45. Sofia Piaia 
(00:35:45) was second and three-time Olympian Rowie Webster 
(00:35:41) finished in third.

Harvey Luscombe was the men’s winner of the 600m event with a 
time of 00:08:43 and Zoe McKenna was the female winner with a 
time of 00:09:14.

The 1.2km event, Thomas Hay was the open male winner with a 
time of 00:14:30, with second place tied between Clancy Luscombe 
(00:14:45) and the 2021 winner Matt Gilling (00:14:45). Mia Holah 
was the open female winner with a time of 00:16:30. Like the male 
category, second was also tied with Madison Cooper (00:16:34) and 
Anglesea SLSC’s own Naantali Marshall (00:16:34).

Race Director, Tom Cullen said “Swimmers enjoyed the calm sea 
conditions which were experienced by all. Whether this was your 
first-time swimming in an ocean swim, or you were a seasoned 
swimmer, everyone had a great day.” 

The Burson Rock2Ramp Ocean Swim would like to thank everyone 
that attended and supported the event with much needed funds 
going to the Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club, to ensure we can 
continue to provide essential rescue services to the Anglesea 
community and visitors. 

For the full results please visit www.rock2ramp.com 

We look forward to seeing you again at the 2023 Burson  
Rock2Ramp Ocean Swim on Thursday 28, December 2023.

Tom Cullen 
Race Director

2022 BURSON ROCK2RAMP
OCEAN SWIM REPORT
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We had a great turn out from members, with most areas collected 
on the night. Our Nipper families continue to be the backbone  
of this event, making up 90% of the members who volunteered  
for this event. Holding this event in December again proved 
successful in terms of households being full and our Nipper 
families around to help.

We continued to focus on cash free donation options as both a 
COVID-safe and convenient donation options, through the Go 
Fund Me platform, which resulted in a greater number of sizeable 

donations. This also allowed us to continue to raise funds via 
QR code donation points around the Club, across the summer. 
Thanks to all those families who helped on the night. We continue 
to try and encourage our older members to get involved in this 
important event. The total raised was $39,267, a record amount 
for this event.

Fiona Fitzgerald 
Doorknock Coordinator

DOORKNOCK REPORT
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It has been another busy year on the Member Development front, 
with our trainers helping the next generation of lifesavers join us 
on the beach. I’d like to extend a big thank you to all involved in 
the delivery of training and assessment at Anglesea. It was great to 
see so many happy faces at our courses.

Some highlights for the season include:

•	 Another action packed week at Bronze Camp. Thanks to Tilly 
Campbell and Alice Bills for all their hard work in the lead up, 
and over the course of the camp, and to all the trainers who 
assisted over the week with both training and assessment.

•	 Welcoming our newest patrollers onto the beach after 
completing their SRC, run by Shem Fitzgerald

•	 All the thrills (and spills) from our IRB crew and driver 
courses, giving our patrolling members the opportunity to 
upskill to further improve safety on our beach. 

All these opportunities would not have been possible without 
the dedication of our volunteer trainers and assessors, and I 
am incredibly grateful for the all the weekends and beautiful 
summer days that they give up to help train the next generation of 
lifesavers. 

Lachlan Eaton 
Director of member Development

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT
REPORT

GROWL GROWL GROWL
Post Covid, Bears have enjoyed a successful resumption of activities, 
with attendances in the sixties and sometimes up to eighties.

The Bears opening night function in May saw approximately 120 
attendees, probably a record.

This a far cry from back in 2008 (when Bears restarted) some Sundays 
we would struggle for a quorum.

If not a Bear, then please register in Fundraising/Events Section on 
the website, and come along, usually the first Sunday of the month, 
and enjoy a winter swim and BBQ afterwards.

Chief Bear Mick, as usual totally unauthorised and inaccurate.

Michael McConnell 
ASLSC Polar Bears

POLAR BEARS
REPORT



We have seen another busy year in relation to marketing activity 
around the Club. A newly formed marketing group consisting of 
Emily Murray, Mietta Walsh, Nici Henningsen and Rob Tennant 
convened following the AGM last year to align on the goals and 
direction for the Club over the coming season, and years to come. 
Thank you to the team listed above for your support and guidance 
over the past year. 

As a team, the agreed areas of focus for the upcoming season 
included:

•	 A desire to create an inclusive events calendar that supported 
all areas of the Club.

•	 Continue to drive revenue through merchandise sales. 

•	 Renewed focus on sponsorship and donations from an 
expanded group of businesses and individuals

•	 Keep members engaged and informed through regular 
communications.

I’d like to call out some significant wins for the Club in relation to 
marketing over the past season:

•	 Our local community engagement continues to go from 
strength to strength. We are seeing strong support from local 
businesses through sponsorship and both local publications, 
the Surf Coast Times and Geelong Advertiser, are regularly 
featuring the Club’s achievements, both on and off the beach. 

•	 The Club’s newsletter, A Line in the Sand, continues to be the 
central point for information and knowledge sharing across 
members. We have seen strong readership, with a 65% 
open rate across all emails sent. We are looking at ways to 
ensure this continues to be an engaging source of content for 
everyone into the next season.  

•	 Our merchandise shop would not have been possible without 
the tireless work of our team of volunteers this year. The 
ladies did an incredible job, not only throughout the season 
but undertaking a stocktake at the start and end of financial 
year. Thank you so much team!

•	 Revenue from the store came in at $51k at the end of the 
peak season, which is 9% below last year’s revenue, however 
this is still a strong result. 

•	 The Club’s social media following continues to grow, with a 
12% increase in followers across Instagram and 19% increase 
on Facebook, over the last 12 months. This will continue to 
be a strong connector for club members in the peak and 
off seasons to share information, celebrate our wins and 
promote our partnerships. 

•	 Our schedule of events was very well received, with highlights 
including the reinstatement of the Ladies Lunch, Nipper 
Family Night, 70th Anniversary celebrations, Locals lunch, 
Awards night and many, many more. 

With the marketing portfolio spanning many facets from events to 
sponsorship, communications and social media, to merchandise, 
there is still much to achieve and plenty for us to work on as a 
team. I am excited and energised to continue to support the Club 
to find new revenue streams and help create an engaged group of 
members year-round. Bring on next season!

Emily Watsford 
Director of Marketing

MARKETING  
REPORT
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As in previous seasons, the trustees of the Hilton White Estate made 
another significant donation to the Club through the Supporters 
Group. This has enabled the purchase of additional equipment used 
by the Nipper and Starfish groups and provides continuing financial 
support for the Starfish program for future seasons. 

Another ‘Weber Barbeque’ fundraising raffle was successfully 
conducted this year by Geoff and Jenny Inman and we thank them 
for their continuing generosity and support.  This initiative has 
contributed in the order of $10,000 over the past four seasons.

In this past season, the Supporters Group were pleased to provide 
support for the following:

•	 Purchase of new Nipper boards, Dolphin competition boards, 
new Charger competition ski and Meek paddle for the 
Dolphin program.

•	 Purchase of numbered competition caps for the 70th 
Anniversary celebrations.

•	 Membership fee subsidies for the Local Nipper program.

•	 Purchase of trophy for Rock 2 Ramp swim.

•	 Provision of food vouchers to Saturday patrol members.

•	 Underwriting of the Nipper Family Fun Night, which 
successfully resumed this season, following cancellations in 
previous years due to Covid 19 impact.

•	 Liaised with the Starfish Nippers coordination committee to 
assist with the creation of a program of activities for season 
2023 – 2024 and established a budget for that program.

•	 Provision of funding to support members selected to 
undertake personal development and training courses in 
seasons 2022 – 2023 and 2023 – 2024.

•	 Running of a break-up BBQ for the Bronze Camp participants.

We thank the President and Directors for their support, and we 
look forward to the opportunity to continue our contribution to 
the success of our great Club.

Geoffrey Elliott 
Chair – Supporters Group Advisory Committee

SUPPORTERS
GROUP
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The Silver Salties are a great group who enjoy a fun frolic in the ocean 
while practicing bodysurfing. Our common interest is a love of the 
ocean, and our common goal is to bodysurf safely in local conditions. 

Each January we run a three day ‘back to basics’ course followed 
by weekly meets through the summer season at Anglesea Main 
Beach and Pt Roadknight. This year 25 people joined this course.

The fundamentals of water and beach safety are imbedded in the 
body surfing program, as many join our group, with little or no 
ocean experience. 

It gives me great joy to see how successful the Salties program 
has become in strengthening connections in the Anglesea local 
community. 

The Salties are grateful for the support of water safety volunteers, 
many of them young enough to be their grandchildren!

Salties is fun but would not exist without the enthusiasm of our 
members. The many hours that Lisa and Simon Howden put in, to 
Terrey and the support of Jennie Mauderer and Raylene Fordham, 
Club Manager.

Winter is upon us but be assured you will still see us catching 
those magnificent winter waves.

Till spring comes around. 

Hetti Ramp

SILVER SALTIES



Following a series of postponements due to the COVID 19 pandemic, 
the Club was finally able to host its 70th Anniversary celebration 
during early November 2022. 

The three day event attracted over 200 former, present members 
and families to what turned out to be the best weekend weather 
we had experienced for many months. A great deal of preparation 
was involved in hosting what proved to be a very successful event 
over the three-day program, involving a display of photographs and 
memorabilia dating back to the Club’s creation in 1952 and a number 
of hospitality events.

During the weekend a film was shown depicting ASLSC during the 
1950’s-60’s. This film had been successfully created by Hugh Murray 
from several donated films that had been copied by the Club during 
the year. We thank Hugh for his time and work.

Activities commenced with an informal gathering in Jimpy’s Bar 
on Friday evening where many former competitors and members 
were able to renew acquaintances, share their stories, and revisit 
experiences about adventures in the surf – with waves which became 
bigger as the night went on.

Saturday was the main event commencing with a midday swim 
by participants including former members, with quite a number 
now living in the northern states, suffering temporary shock from 
Anglesea’s ‘bracing’ November water temperature. Judging by this 
performance the Australian Surf Race title is unlikely to be challenged 
any time soon!

A BBQ was provided in the early afternoon followed by a presentation 
of numbered caps to former State and Australian team members.

Saturday evening was the main social event which was attended 
by over 150 people. A brief presentation by former President Dave 
Kennedy about the early history of the Club, followed by current 
President David Marsh, who provided an outline of the Club’s growth 
over more than 70 years. Finger food was provided, while current 
and former members exchanged tall and true tales (although many 
of the former than the latter) and caught up for drinks. Fortunately, 
Prue Weber who had taken on the task of preparing the displays, 
had thought ahead by arranging name and era identification cards. 
This was particularly useful in dealing with the challenge of linking 
former members with their photographs – which often bore little 
resemblance!

The weekend finished with another casual BBQ. This was a very 
successful and casual event, completing what proved to be a 
wonderful weekend of Club celebration. 

Thanks were due to a working group set up to manage the event, 
Polar Bear’s members for manning the food and drinks program on 
Saturday and Sunday, Prue Weber for the excellent photographic 
and memorabilia display, and Club Manager, Raylene Fordham for 
coordinating the event and hospitality service. Special thanks to 
Andrew Mauderer, Graeme Weber and the other photographers for 
taking photographs during the weekend, thus recording the event 
and finally to the important people, who greeted and manned the 
door and provided name tags for all attendees  

Barry White 
70th Anniversary Committee Chair    

ANGLESEA SLSC 70TH
ANNIVERSARY
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ASLSC Awards Season 2021/22

SLSA Patrol Service Awards

10 years – Matthew Angie, Cameron Barr, Kate Walker

15 years – Andrew Rechtman

25 years- Wayne Cartwright

SLSA National Medal

15 years Patrolling over 30 hrs - Andrew Rechtman, Michael Martin AM

25 years Patrolling over 30 hrs – Wayne Cartwright

ASLSC Honorary Membership – Kevin Rigg, Lionel McWilliam, Barry White

ASLSC Life Membership – Ingilby Dickson 

LSV Awards of Excellence 2022 – Graeme Long Award – Matthew M Taylor

Team of the Year U17-Open – Open Mixed 6 Person R&R

Coach of the Year – Christine Cardwell

LSV Life Membership – Wayne Cartwright

Paul Lunny ESM

LSV Presidents Certificate- Michael Martin AM

Mike Martin AM Champion LifeSaver co - Ellie Morgan

Fred Westfield Medal – Jasmine Hume

Australian Honors – Francis Herd OAM; Paul Lunny ESM

SLSA Awards of Excellence (October) 2022- Christine Cardwell Coach of the Year

LSV Finalists Awards of Excellence 2022

John Wishart Medal Life Saver of the Year– Wayne Cartwright

Beach Lifeguard of the Year – Lucas Waters

Nipper Club Program of the Year - ASLSC

ASLSC MEMBERS	 GAINING 
RECOGNITION
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ANNOUNCED AT THE 2021/22 AGM



Margaret Marsh Award	
Most Outstanding Club member in Season 2022/23 - Will 
Pereira

President’s Award
For the most Promising Youth member - Kate Taylor

Bruce Thompson Award
Sam Johnson

Margaret Worrell Award
Sam Johnson

Service to Surf Sports (IRB Racing)
Kristin Reither

Shane Edmonds Award
Summer Morgan

Bruce Edmonds Award
Michaela Kelly

Foundation Future Leaders Award
Jasmine Hume

Youth Development Award
Shem Fitzgerald

Starfish Trainer of the Year
Jack Livingston

Service to Youth Sport
Yvette Morgan
Ivor Morgan
Naantali Marshall

Most Outstanding ASR Team – ASR 5
Patrol Captain – Donald Bryce
Vice-Captain – Kate Owen
Vice-Captain – Marli Wilkinson
Frankie Morgan

Lifeguard of the Year
Bailey Wraith

ASR Team Member of the Year
Lachlan Sallabank

Service to Rescue Services (IRBs and Equipment)
James Betson

Trainer of the Year 
Will Pereira

Assessor of the Year
Mike Martin

Service to Administration
Raylene Fordham

Service to Club Culture
Marli Wilkinson

Most Outstanding Service to Club
David Marsh

SLSA Service Awards
25 Years’ Service Award
Bronwyn Marsh
Ross Peasnell
Ivor Morgan
Amanda Thompson
Heather McGain

60 Years’ Service Award
Michael McConnell
Douglas Solly

ASLSC MEMBERS	 GAINING 
RECOGNITION
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PRESENTATION DAY, 22ND APRIL 2023 
2022/23 AWARD RECIPIENTS



 60 Years Alexander Sutherland
 25 Year William Phillips

ASLSC MEMBERS	 GAINING 
RECOGNITION
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ASLSC AWARDS CARNIVAL LUNCH JANUARY 2023 
SLSA SERVICE AWARDS

NOMINEE
Naantali Marshall
Julia Phillips
Eleanor Barr
Peter Van Miltenburg
Warren Clarke
Anglesea SLSC
Anglesea Open Mixed Beach Relay
Anglesea Beach Team  -  
Australian Surf Life Saving Championships
AWARD NAME
Athlete of the Year - Masters
Athlete of the Year - Open
Beach Lifeguard of the Year
Coach of the Year
LSV Life Member 2023
Rescue of the Year
U17 to Open Team of the Year
U17 to Open Team of the Year

2023 LSV AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE NOMINEES



COMPETITION  
RESULTS 22/23
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* Please note there was no Senior Club Champs in the 2022/23 Season

SLSA TITLES SCARBOROUGH, TRIGG ISLAND WESTERN AUSTRALIA 25/3/2023-29/3/2023

SENIORS
U17 Mens Beach Sprint: Patrick Kenny - Bronze
Open Mixed Beach Relay: Kate Walker, Cooper Stanley, 
Patrick Kenny, Julia Phillips - 4th
Open Female Beach Sprint: Julia Phillips - 6th
U17 Male Beach Flags: Samuel Johnson - 7th
Open Women’s Beach Relay: Stephanie Larkin,  
Julia Phillips, Isabella Robinson, Kate Walker – 8th 
U17 Mens Beach Sprint: Samuel Johnson
U19 Mens Beach Sprint: Cooper Stanley

VICTORIAN CLUBS POINT SCORE
37th equal Anglesea SLSC - 12 pts
37th equal Mordialloc LSC - 12 pts
42nd Ocean Grove SLSC - 6 pts
43rd St Kilda LSC - 5 pts
44th Lorne SLSC - 4 pts
45th Sth Melbourne LSC - 3 pts
46th Jan Juc SLSC - 1 pt

MASTERS
Womens 45-50Yrs Single Ski Race - Naantali Marshall - Gold
Womens 45-50Yrs Surf Race Race; Naantali Marshall - Gold
Womens 45-50Yrs Board Race; Naantali Marshall - Gold
Womens 45-50Yrs Ironperson Race; Naantali Marshall - Gold
Mens 45-50Yrs 2Km Run; Samuel Hume - Silver
Mens 45-50Yrs 2Km Swim; Samuel Hume – 4th 
Mens 45-50Yrs Board Race; Ivor Morgan – 5th 
Mens 45-50Yrs Single Ski Race; Ivor Morgan – 5th 
Mens 65-69Yrs Surf Race; Ingilby Dickson – 5th 
Mens 45-50Yrs Surf Race; Samuel Hume – 6th 
Mens 45-50Yrs Ironperson Race; Ivor Morgan – 6th 
Mens 45-50Yrs Surf Race; Samuel Hume – 6th 
Mens 45-50Yrs Board Race; Samuel Hume – 11th 

VICTORIAN CLUB POINT SCORE
28th Half Moon Bay SLSC - 50pts
34th Anglesea SLSC - 40 pts
39th Pt Leo SLSC - 34 pts
44th Jan Juc SLSC - 26 pts
48th Portsea SLSC - 22 pts
52nd Fairhaven SLSC - 16 pts

YOUTH
U14 Female 2Km Run; Jasmine Hume – 5th 
U14,U15 Female 2x1Km Beach Run; Jasmine Hume / Ellie 
Morgan – 6th 
U14,U15 Female Surf Teams; Jasmine Hume, Ellie Morgan , 
Emily Thomas, Charlotte Mead – 9th 

LSV SENIOR VICTORIAN TITLES 26-28 FEBRUARY 2023 
AT OCEAN GROVE
U14 Womens 2KM Run: Jasmine Hume – Gold 
Youth Womens Board Rescue: Jasmine Hume / Ellie Morgan - Gold
U17 Mens Beach Sprint: Sam Johnson – Gold 
U17 Mens Beach Relay: Mitchell Reither, Kane Emery, 
Patrick Kenny, Sam Johnson - Gold
U17 Mens Beach Flags: Patrick Kenny – Gold 
U19 Mens Beach Sprint: Cooper Stanley - Gold
U19 Mens Beach Relay: Kane Emery, Pierre Lee, Cooper 
Stanley, Mitchell Reither - Gold
U19 Mens Beach Flags: Pierre Lee - Gold
Open Womens Beach Sprint: Julia Phillips - Gold
Open Womens Beach Flags: Kate Walker - Gold
Open Womens Beach Relay: Marli Wilkinson, Kate Walker, 
Julia Phillips, Isabella Robinson - Gold
Open Mens Beach Flags: Patrick Kenny - Gold
Open Mixed Beach Relay: A’sea ‘A’- Sam Johnson, Kate 
Walker, Julia Phillips, Patrick Kenny - Gold
Open Womens 5 Person R&R: Marli Wilkinson, Bronwyn 
Marsh, Emma Moore, Alexandra Madeley, Melissa Bir, 
Christine Cardwell (coach) - Gold
Open Mixed 6 Person R&R: Lucas Walters, Warren Clarke, 
Callum Brennan, Alexandra Madeley, Ryan Nolan, Melissa 
Bird, Christine Cardwell (coach) - Gold
Open Mixed 5 Person R&R: Lucas Waters, Callum Brennan, 
Emma Moore, Alexandra Madeley, Melissa Bird, Christine 
Cardwell (coach) – Gold 
U14 Womens Ironwoman: Jasmine Hume - Silver
U14 Womens Tube Race: Jasmine Hume - Silver
Youth Womens 2x1KM Relay: Ellie Morgan, Jasmine Hume - Silver
U17 Mens Beach Flags: Patrick Kenny - Silver
U17 Mens Beach Sprint: Patrick Kenny - Silver
U19 Mens Beach Flags: Cooper Stanley - Silver
Open Mens Beach Sprint: Cooper Stanley - Silver
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Open Mens Beach Flags: Pierre Lee - Silver
Open Mens Beach Relay: Patrick Kenny, Sam Johnson, 
Connor Huysing, Cooper Stanley - Silver
Open Womens Beach Sprint: Kate Walker - Silver
U14 Womens Surf Race: Jasmine Hume - Bronze
U14 Womens Board Race: Jasmine Hume - Bronze
U15 Womens Tube Race: Ellie Morgan - Bronze
U17 Mens Beach Flags: Sam Johnson - Bronze
U19 Mens Surf Boat Race: Anglesea Cannons - Hudson 
Yockins, Baxter Yockins, Tyler Lovell, Jackson Scheler, Scott 
Tannahill (sw) - Bronze
Open Womens Beach Flags: Julia Phillips - Bronze
Open Mens Surf Boat Race: Anglesea Pirates – William 
Popovic, Manning Gratwick, Jacob Morgan, Stephen 
Christofi, Scott Tannahill (sw) - Bronze
Youth Womens Board Relay: Ellie Morgan, Emily Thomas, 
Jasmine Hume – 4th 
U15 Womens Ironwoman: Ellie Morgan – 4th 
U17 Mens Beach Sprint: Kane Emery – 4th 
U19 Mens Beach Flags: Pierre Lee – 4th 
U23 Mens Surf Boat Race: Anglesea Outlaws – Edward 
Mackay, Wilbur Renney, William Popovic, Jake Campbell, 
Scott Tannahill (sw) – 4th 
Open Mens Beach Sprint: Patrick Kenny – 4th 
Open Mixed Beach Relay: A’sea ‘B’- Connor Huysing, Isabella 
Robinson, Marli Wilkinson, Cooper Stanley – 4th 
U14 Womens Beach Flags: Evie Theodore – 5th 
Youth Womens Cameron Relay: Amelia Parr, Ellie Morgan, 
Jasmine Hume, Evie Theodore – 5th 
Open Mens Beach Sprint: Sam Johnson – 5th 
Open Mens Beach Flags: Sam Johnson – 5th 
U14 Womens Beach Sprint: Amelia Parr – 6th 
Youth Womens Surf Teams: Evie Theodore, Jasmine Hume, 
Emily Thomas, Ellie Morgan – 6th 
U14 Womens Tube Race: Emily Thomas – 6th 
U15 Womens Board Race: Ellie Morgan – 6th 
Reserve Mens Surf Boat Race: Anglesea Sashimi – Ryan 
Yockins, Sam Bailey, Cameron McGrane, Angus Staines, 
Miles Ranogajec, Rob Tennant (sw) – 6th 

OVERALL CLUB RANKINGS
1st Ocean Grove SLSC - 2138
2nd Mentone LSC - 1755
3rd Mornington LSC - 1217
4th Half Moon Bay SLSC - 1182
5th Torquay SLSC - 1131
6th Mordialloc LSC - 1111
7th Lorne SLSC - 878
8th Warrnambool SLSC - 791
9th Anglesea SLSC - 756
10th Point Leo SLSC - 736

LSV MASTERS TITLES 11TH FEBRUARY 2023 AT LORNE 
& OCEAN GROVE 25/2/2023
Womens 40-44yrs Board Rescue: Naantali Marshall / 
Bronwyn Marsh - Gold
Womens 45-49yrs Surf Race: Naantali Marshall - Gold
Womens 45-49yrs Board Race: Naantali Marshall - Gold
Womens 45-49yrs Ironwomen Race: Naantali  
Marshall - Gold
Womens 45-49yrs Ski Race: Naantali Marshall - Gold
Mens 45-49yrs 2KM Run: Samuel Hume - Gold
Mens 45-49yrs Board Race: Ivor Morgan - Gold
Mens 45-49yrs Ironman: Ivor Morgan - Gold
Mens 45-49yrs Ski Race: Ivor Morgan - Gold
Mens 45-49yrs Board Rescue: Ivor Morgan /  
Samuel Hume - Gold
Mens 45-49yrs Double Ski Race: Richard Carr /  
Ivor Morgan - Gold
Mens 65-69yrs Surf Race: Ingilby Dickson - Gold
160+ Mens Surf Boat Race: Anglesea Sashimi –  
Cameron McGrane, Samuel Bailey, Angus Staines,  
Ryan Yockins, Rob Tennant (sw) - Gold
Mens 45-49yrs Surf Race: Samuel Hume - Silver
Mens 45-49yrs Board Race: Samuel Hume - Silver
Mens 150+ Surf Teams: Samuel Hume, Matthew Solly, 
Ingilby Dickson - Silver
Mens 45-49yrs Ironman Race: Samuel Hume - Bronze
Mens 60-64yrs Ski Race: Richard Carr - Bronze
Mens 150+ Ski Relay: Richard Carr, Matthew Solly, Ivor 
Morgan - Bronze
Womens 40-44yrs Surf Race: Bronwyn Marsh – 4th 
Womens 40-44yrs Board Race: Bronwyn Marsh – 4th 
Mens 130+ Taplin Relay: Samuel Hume, Ivor Morgan, 
Matthew Solly – 5th 
Mens 50-54yrs Surf Race: Matthew Solly – 6th 

OVERALL CLUB POINT SCORE
1st Pt Leo SLSC - 1838
2nd Half Moon Bay SLSC - 921
3rd Ocean Grove SLSC - 807
4th Mt Martha LSC - 794
5th Black Rock LSC - 651
6th Jan Juc SLSC - 519
7th Mordialloc LSC - 514
8th Portsea SLSC - 507
9th Venus Bay SLSC - 464
10th Lorne SLSC - 402
11th Warrnambool SLSC - 384
12th Anglesea SLSC - 317
13th Mentone LSC - 192
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LSV JUNIOR LIFE SAVING TITLES 10-12TH MARCH 2023 
WARRNAMBOOL
U10 Female Beach Relay: Ella Robertson, Ava Macgowan, 
Charlotte Marsh, Tessa Parr - Gold
U11 Female Iron: Kate Taylor - Gold
U11 Female Board Race: Kate Taylor - Gold
U12 Female Beach Sprint: Eliza Parr - Gold
U12 Female Beach Flags: Eliza Parr - Gold
U12 Female Beach Relay: Mary-Jane Gilbert, Ruby 
Macgowan, Eloise Spinks, Eliza Parr - Gold
U13 Female Board Race: Summer Morgan - Gold
U13 Female Surf Race: Summer Morgan – Gold 
U13 Female Iron: Summer Morgan - Gold
U9 Male Board Relay: Harrison Marsh, Archer Long, Will 
Ryan - Silver
U10 Female Beach Sprint: Tessa Parr - Silver
U10 Female Wade Relay: Ava Macgowan, Ella Robertson, 
Tessa Parr, Charlotte Marsh - Silver
U10 Female Board Relay: Ella Robertson, Amelia Charles, 
Charlotte Marsh - Silver
U10 Female Aqua Cameron Relay: Ella Robertson, Ava 
Macgowan, Charlotte Marsh, Tessa Parr - Silver
U10 Female Surf Teams: Amelia Charles, Tessa Parr, 
Charlotte Marsh, Ella Robertson - Silver
U11 Female Aqua Cameron Relay: Madeleine Crozier, 
Gemma Jurcevic, Kate Taylor, Zoe Hume - Silver
U13 Male Iron: Morgan Taylor - Silver
U13 Female Board Rescue: Summer Morgan /  
Ruby Macgowan - Silver
U10 Female 1Km Beach Run: Ava Macgowan - Bronze
U10 Female Beach Flags: Tessa Parr - Bronze
U10 Female Surf Race: Ella Robertson - Bronze
U10 Female Wade Race: Ella Robertson - Bronze
U11 Female Surf Race: Kate Taylor - Bronze
U12 Female Beach Sprint: Eliza Parr - Bronze
U12 Female Beach Flags: Eloise Spinks - Bronze
U12 Female Board Rescue: Eloise Spinks /  
Mary-Jane Gilbert - Bronze
U10 Female 1Km Beach Run: Tessa Parr – 4th 
U10 Female Beach Flags: Ava Macgowan – 4th 
U11 Female Board Relay : Kate Taylor, Zoe Hume,  
Madeleine Ceozier – 4th 
U 9 Male Surf Teams Race: Archer Long, Rory Schultz, Will 
Ryan, Harrison Marsh – 5th 
U10 Female Beach Sprint: Ava Macgowan – 5th 
U10 Female Board Race: Ella Robertson – 5th 
U11 Male Iron: Byron Morgan – 5th 
U11 Female Surf Teams: Kate Taylor, Zoe Hume, Gemma 
Jurcevic, Madeleine Crozier – 5th 

U11 Female Wade Relay: Madeleine Crozier, Gemma 
Jurcevic, Zoe Hume, Kate Taylor – 5th 
U12 Female Beach Sprint: Eloise Spinks – 5th 
U12 Female Cameron Relay: Ruby Macgowan, Eloise Spinks, 
Mary-Jane Gilbert, Eliza Parr – 5th 
U12 Female Beach Flags: Ruby Macgowan – 6th 
U12 Female Board Relay: Mary-Jane Gilbert, Eloise Spinks, 
Ruby Macgowan – 6th 
U13 Male Surf Race: Morgan Taylor – 6th 

OVERALL CLUB RANKINGS
1st Torquay SLSC - 1526
2nd Ocean Grove SLSC - 1444
3rd Mentone LSC - 1152
4th Mornington LSC - 976
5th Lorne SLSC - 947
6th Jan Juc SLSC - 784
7th Anglesea SLSC - 600
8th Pt Leo SLSC - 580
9th Warrnambool SLSC - 546
10th Mordialloc LSC - 452



AWARDS
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MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Anghie	 Matthew	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Blake	 Amelia	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Butler	 Xavier	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Campbell	 Matilda	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Clausen	 Rodney	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Crozier	 Sebastian	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Cullen	 Thomas	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Davidson	 Madeline	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Fry	 Jasmine	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Hannan	 Jack	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Hill	 Victoria	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Huysing	 Connor	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Jeffrey	 Laura	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
King	 Peter	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Littleford	 Mike	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Lo	 Philip	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Madeley	 Alexandra	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
McIntyre	 Matilda	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Peasnell	 Ross	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Pereira	 William	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Phelan	 Chloe	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Sallabank	 Lachlan	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Stobie	 Jack	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Ussher	 Annabelle	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Ussher	 William	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Webb	 Luca	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques
Wight	 Ricky	 Advanced Resuscitation Techniques

MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Allsop	 Luke	 Bronze Medallion
Bailey	 Sam	 Bronze Medallion
Bare	 Madeleine	 Bronze Medallion
Barons	 Matilda	 Bronze Medallion
Bragg	 Paul	 Bronze Medallion
Byrne	 Freya	 Bronze Medallion
Carrington	 Tilly	 Bronze Medallion
Chivers	 Eliza	 Bronze Medallion
Clark	 Hamish	 Bronze Medallion
Clausen	 Rodney	 Bronze Medallion
Cornish	 Ruby	 Bronze Medallion
Dalton	 Jack	 Bronze Medallion
Doyle	 Meagan	 Bronze Medallion
Emery	 Kane	 Bronze Medallion
Emery	 Skye	 Bronze Medallion
Forster	 Ben	 Bronze Medallion
Fry	 Cooper	 Bronze Medallion

ADVANCED RESUSCITATION TECHNIQUES

BRONZE MEDALLION
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MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Gowans	 Phoebe	 Bronze Medallion
Graham	 Claudia	 Bronze Medallion
Hall	 Ted	 Bronze Medallion
Harrington	 William	 Bronze Medallion
Hope	 Olivia	 Bronze Medallion
Hudson	 Jethro	 Bronze Medallion
James	 Edward	 Bronze Medallion
Keenan	 Mackenzie	 Bronze Medallion
Lawson	 Finn	 Bronze Medallion
Leviny	 Sam	 Bronze Medallion
Lomas-Mee	 Henrietta	 Bronze Medallion
Lovell	 Tyler	 Bronze Medallion
Magee	 Frederick	 Bronze Medallion
Marriott	 Jack	 Bronze Medallion
Marsh	 Bronwyn	 Bronze Medallion
McCarthy	 Benjamin	 Bronze Medallion
McCorkell	 Eddie	 Bronze Medallion
Mcfarland	 Neve	 Bronze Medallion
Mcgrane	 Cameron	 Bronze Medallion
Mead	 Charlotte	 Bronze Medallion
Meadows	 Coco	 Bronze Medallion
Morgan	 Ellie	 Bronze Medallion
Mullen	 Lughan	 Bronze Medallion
Neesham	 Chris	 Bronze Medallion
O’Connell	 Rafferty	 Bronze Medallion
Pappas	 Miles William	 Bronze Medallion
Parker	 Cameron	 Bronze Medallion
Purcell	 Charlie	 Bronze Medallion
Rebiere	 Louis	 Bronze Medallion
Rourke	 George	 Bronze Medallion
Ruddock	 William	 Bronze Medallion
Rundle	 Emma	 Bronze Medallion
Scheier	 Jackson	 Bronze Medallion
Sharples	 Gavan	 Bronze Medallion
Shears-Jones	 Alexander	 Bronze Medallion
Silluzio	 Dakota	 Bronze Medallion
Tivendale	 Andrew	 Bronze Medallion
Ussher	 Eleanor	 Bronze Medallion
Warers	 Louis	 Bronze Medallion
White	 Zoe	 Bronze Medallion
Yockins	 Hudson	 Bronze Medallion
Zicman	 Max	 Bronze Medallion

MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Anghie	 Matthew	 First Aid
Blackman	 James	 First Aid
Blake	 Amelia	 First Aid
Butler	 Xavier	 First Aid
Campbell	 Matilda	 First Aid
Clausen	 Rodney	 First Aid

BRONZE MEDALLION

FIRST AID
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Crozier	 Sebastian	 First Aid
Cullen	 Thomas	 First Aid
Davidson	 Madeline	 First Aid
Fry	 Jasmine	 First Aid
Hannan	 Jack	 First Aid
Hill	 Victoria	 First Aid
Huysing	 Connor	 First Aid
Jeffrey	 Laura	 First Aid
King	 Peter	 First Aid
Littleford	 Mike	 First Aid
Lo	 Philip	 First Aid
Madeley	 Alexandra	 First Aid
McIntyre	 Matilda	 First Aid
McLisky	 James	 First Aid
Morgan	 Ivor	 First Aid
Peasnell	 Ross	 First Aid
Pereira	 William	 First Aid
Phelan	 Chloe	 First Aid
Sallabank	 Lachlan	 First Aid
Stobie	 Jack	 First Aid
Ussher	 Annabelle	 First Aid
Ussher	 William	 First Aid
Webb	 Luca	 First Aid
Wight	 Ricky	 First Aid

MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Wraith	 Bailey	 Gold Medallion (Advanced Lifesaving)

Barr	 Eleanor	 Pain Management Certificate 
Mackay	 Edward	 Pain Management Certificate 

MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Bratuskins	 Sophie	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Farah	 David	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Farrow	 Archibald	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Fawcett	 Dexter	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Forster	 Ginger	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Gilbert	 Fitzwilliam	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Hadley	 Isabelle	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Harper	 Niamh	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Hill	 Lexie	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Hodder	 Peyton	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Hume	 Jasmine	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Huysing	 Nicholas	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Jaggars	 Ava	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Jones	 Tadhg	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Keenan	 James	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Maisey	 Grace	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
McIntyre	 Grace	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
McNee	 Lucy	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)

GOLD MEDALLION | PAIN MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE

SURF RESCUE CERTIFICATE (CPR ENDORSED)
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Miller	 Eve	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Morgan	 Summer	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Oates	 Olivia	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Orner	 Sarah	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Pappas	 Arabella	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Parr	 Amelia	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Ragg	 Patrick	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Reilly	 Jimmy	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Ruddock	 Benjamin	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Smith	 Benjamin	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Spinks	 Fergus	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Steinfort	 Maggie	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Suttle	 Zoe	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Tritton	 Tom	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Trotter	 Charley	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Van Beek	 Ben	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Weller	 Maisie	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
White	 Finn	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)
Wuchatsch	 Ben	 Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR Endorsed)

MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Bare	 Madeleine	 IRB Crew Certificate
Blake	 Amelia	 IRB Crew Certificate
Butler	 Xavier	 IRB Crew Certificate
Carrington	 Tilly	 IRB Crew Certificate
Fry	 Cooper	 IRB Crew Certificate
Graham	 Claudia	 IRB Crew Certificate
Lovell	 Tyler	 IRB Crew Certificate
Magee	 Frederick	 IRB Crew Certificate
Marsh	 Bronwyn	 IRB Crew Certificate
Ruddock	 William	 IRB Crew Certificate
Scheier	 Jackson	 IRB Crew Certificate
Yockins	 Baxter	 IRB Crew Certificate
Yockins	 Hudson	 IRB Crew Certificate
Yockins	 Ryan	 IRB Crew Certificate

MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Campbell	 Matilda	 Silver Medallion IRB Driver
Reither	 Kristin	 Silver Medallion IRB Driver
Stobie	 Jack	 Silver Medallion IRB Driver

MEMBER SURNAME	 MEMBER FIRST NAME	 AWARD NAME
Spinks	 Simon	 Training Officer Bronze Medallion

Fitzgerald	 John	 Training Officer Surf Rescue
Spinks	 Simon	 Training Officer Surf Rescue

IRB CREW CERTIFICATE

SILVER MEDALLION IRB DRIVER

TRAINING OFFICER CERTIFICATES
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Award Name 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 6 23 34 27

Gold Medallion 0 5 1 1

Bronze Medallion 42 46 80 59

First Aid Certificate 7 47 52 30

IRB - Crew 3 31 40 14

IRB - Driver 0 9 0 3

Surf Rescue Certificate 62 44 77 37

Training Officer Certificate 1 1 4 3

Assessor 1 0 0 0

Pain Management 0 2 4 2

Silver Medallion Beach Management 0 6 5 0



John R Turner was awarded in the recent King’s Birthday Honors 
an OAM General Division for his Service to Life Saving.

John began his Lifesaving involvement firstly with Williamstown 
SLSC in 1953 gaining a RLSSA Bronze Medallion, then he joined Pt 
Lonsdale SLSC and gained a SLSA Bronze Medallion in 1954. John 
became very active while a Member of Pt Lonsdale SLSC holding 
several Committee positions and participated in the Senior Boat 
Crew which won a Gold Medal at the SLSA Titles 1965, he was 
made a Life Member of Pt Lonsdale SLSC in 1966.

John was selected by SLSV in several Life Saving teams and in 
1965 was selected in the SLSA Team to tour USA and in 1967 was 
selected in the first SLSV Wieland Shield Team.

John was granted Active Reserve Membership when he and 
his family joined Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club in 1976, and he 
became very active in supporting youth development and set up 
the Mazda Development Squad in 1994. He was ASLSC Director of 
Competition 1997-2000; granted Honorary Membership in 2008 & 
in 2013 was made a Life Member and was a foundation Member 
of the Anglesea Supporters Group 2014, Secretary 2017-22.

John has made a wonderful contribution to all aspects of Life 
Saving and we congratulate him on his well-deserved Award. 

JOHN TURNER OAM
HONOURS
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MEMBERSHIP
LISTING 22/23
PROBATIONARY
Bader	 Karina
Bryant	 Elizabeth
Butler	 Justin
Cleland	 Abi
Doyle	 Mark
Hansen	 Tor
Harrison	 James
Hede	 Xavier
Hill	 Phoebe
Macfarlane	 Alice
Mitchell	 Kirk
Oldland	 Jane
Ruddock	 Oliver
Saliba	 Chris
Taylor	 Ian
Taylor	 Noah

ASSOCIATE
Abbott	 Cameron
Abbott	 Carla
Ackland	 Katie
Adair	 Amy
Adair	 Nathan
Addison-Baker	 Liz
Alkan	 Caner
Allen	 Heath
Anderson	 Heather
Anderson	 Lisa
Andriske	 Bridie
Arney	 Ashley
Arney	 Janet
Artup	 Michael
Ashby	 Rob
Aspromonte	 Fiona
Atkins	 James
Attree	 Nina
Attree	 Vince
Avola	 David
Bahramis	 Luke
Bahramis	 Sarah
Bailey	 David
Bailey	 William
Baldock	 Desley
Ballem	 Len

Ballem	 Vivien
Bare	 Jonathan
Bare	 Sally
Barnes	 Andrew
Barons	 Brett
Basile	 Mark
Batchelor	 Ryan
Bates	 Paul
Beattie	 Leon
Beattie	 Peta
Beaven	 Guy
Begley	 Jacinta
Bell	 Ashlea
Bell	 Luke
Bell	 Nicole
Belski	 Regina
Benness	 David
Berry	 Georgia
Bews	 Emily
Black	 Chris
Blake	 William
Bolden	 Tim
Bone	 Sophie
Bone	 Tim
Boston	 Alanna
Bouchier	 Danielle
Brammer	 Sandy
Brant	 Andrea
Brant	 James
Bratuskins	 Jason
Bratuskins	 Suzanne
Brennan	 Amy
Britton	 Camilla
Britton	 Mark
Bromley	 Kate
Brown	 Adrian
Brown	 Anita
Brown	 Iain
Brown	 Nathan
Brown	 Wendy
Brown-Major	 Anita
Brumley	 Carolyn
Buckley	 Joe
Bull	 Kate
Bull	 Nick

Burgess	 Anthony
Burgess	 Janine
Butler	 Damien
Butler	 Kimberley
Callow	 Chris
Cameron	 Bronwyn
Campbell	 Christopher
Campbell	 Greg
Campbell	 Heather
Campbell	 Karen
Canty	 Georgina
Carabott	 Christopher
Carbines	 Anthony
Carrington	 Jason
Carrington	 Rachael
Cattanach	 Kate
Cattanach	 Rickie
Caven	 Maria
Chandler	 Liz
Chapman	 Belinda
Chapman	 Graham
Charles	 Stuart
Chetcuti	 Jacinta
Chetcuti	 Trevor
Childs	 Melinda
Childs	 Wayne
Chivers	 David
Chow	 Bienna
Clark	 Nicki
Clark	 Peter
Clark	 Wendy
Clausen	 Rodney
Clements	 Kylie
Cobbold	 Nicholas
Cole	 Marion
Cole	 Paul
Collie	 Fiona
Colovic	 Merilla
Compton	 Elizabeth
Cooney	 Jerome
Cooper	 Clare
Cooper	 Owen
Cooper	 Stef
Copes	 James
Copes	 Meg
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Coupe	 Mandy
Coutts	 Rowena
Cramond	 Christopher
Cramond	 Erica
Crowl	 Geoff
Dalli	 Jeremy
Daniell	 Emma
Darakamaran	 Tava
Davidson	 Angela
Davidson	 Scott
Davie	 Ashley
Dawkins	 Rosie
Deledio	 Katie
Dillon	 Julia
Dillon	 Matthew
Diwell	 Kylie
Dixon	 Benjamin
Dobbin-Thomas	 Marika
Drake	 Jaclyn
Durham	 Alison
Dyas	 Lydia
Earey	 Adam
Eaton	 Beth
Elliott	 Gary
Ercoli	 Chiara
Evans	 Eamon
Evans	 Jill
Fanning	 Dean
Farah	 Nicola
Farah	 Sharbel
Farley	 Erin
Farley	 Tim
Farmer	 Anthony
Farmer	 Kylie
Farrow	 Jane
Farrow	 Tim
Faull	 Eliza
Fawcett	 Petra
Fawcett	 Tim
Feehan	 Lachlan
Feehan	 Melissa
Fenton	 Georgina
Fenton	 Lucy
Finch	 Robert
Fisher	 Robert
Fisken	 Anna
Fisken	 Geoff
Fisken	 Susan
Flack	 Campbell
Foley	 Elizabeth

Foley	 Michael
Foley	 Nicole
Foran	 Amanda
Foran	 David
Forbes	 Grace
Fordham	 Raylene
Fox	 Genevieve
Fox	 Jacinta
Fox	 Wendy
Francis	 David
Francis	 Linda
Fraser	 Kathryn-Therese
Fry	 Melinda
Furlan	 Lawrence
Garon	 Julie
Garon	 Will
Gbikpi-Benissan	 Anna
Gbikpi-Benissan	 Ete Elom
Gelt	 Eric
Gelt	 Liza
Gerrans	 Rahna
Gerrans	 Simon
Gilbert	 Prue
Gill	 Stuart
Gomez	 Caroline
Gomez	 Justin
Gooday	 Andrew
Goulding	 Marion
Gow	 Felicity
Gow	 Justin
Gowans	 Katrina
Gowans	 Peter
Graham	 Angus
Graham	 Charlotte
Graham	 Henrietta
Graham	 Natalie
Gray	 Ann
Gray	 Kirsten
Gray	 Lyn
Gray	 Penelope
Gray	 Stephen
Grayson	 Andrew
Grayson	 Naomi
Greaney	 Andrew
Greaney	 Denise
Gredler	 Paola
Gredler	 Steven
Griffiths	 Kathryn
Groeneveld	 Bas
Groeneveld	 Manon

Gross	 Adele
Gross	 Mathias
Grottoli	 Veronica
Gullock	 Campbell
Gullock	 Gary
Guss	 Joseph
Hadley	 Christian
Hale	 Juliet
Hall	 Belinda
Hall	 Patrick
Hamilton	 Anne
Hamilton	 Ian
Hammond	 James
Hannan	 Elliot
Hansen	 Nadine
Harding	 June
Hardwick	 Anna
Hardwick	 James
Hardwick	 Joanne
Hardwick	 Matthew
Harper	 Clare
Harper	 Ian
Harper	 Renae
Harries	 Belinda
Harvey	 Peter
Haseler	 Patrick
Haseler	 Sophie
Hassett	 Glenn
Hassett	 Rebecca
Haywood	 Peta
Hearne	 Helen
Hede	 Beth
Hede	 Luke
Heine	 Kate
Heinnen	 Rebecca
Henningsen	 Nici
Hibbs	 Savannah
Hill	 Andrew
Hill	 Jayne
Hill	 Stephen
Hoblos	 Emily
Hogan	 Jane
Hogan	 Tom
Horne	 Anthony
Horne	 Jane
Hose	 Hermione
Hose	 Stuart
Hosking	 Jennifer
Houghton	 Jessica
Howden	 Simon
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Howell	 Nicholas
Hudson	 Camilla
Hulyer	 Danielle
Hume	 Richard
Hume	 Stephen
Hume	 Susan
Humphreys	 Bradley
Hundt	 Penelope
Hunt	 Emma
Hunter	 Thomas
Hutchison	 Gillian
Huysing	 Jared
Huysing	 Stephen
Inman	 Karen
Irving	 Kelly
Isakhan	 Benjamin
Isakhan	 Lyndal
Jackson	 Andrew
Jackson	 Kate
Jaggars	 Josh
Jaggars	 Lisa
James	 Rosalind
Jelbart	 George
Jelbart	 Sally
Jessup	 Rebecca
Johnson	 Melanie
Johnston	 Alice
Johnston	 Bindy
Johnston	 Kellie
Johnston	 Ross
Jones	 Andrew
Jones	 Brendan
Jones	 Jessica
Jones	 Katherine
Jones	 Matt
Jones	 Rebecca
jones	 sarah
Jones	 Sue
Jones	 Tobias
Jordan	 Anthony
Joseph	 Chris
Joseph	 Navina
Jurcevic	 Peter
Jurista	 Michael
Karpeles	 Nikki
Kauffman	 Isolde
Kaye	 Danni
Keen	 Elise
Kelly	 Michaela
Kelly	 Shannyn

Kennedy	 Chris
Kennedy	 Joanne
Kent	 Kathryn
Knights	 Briana
Knights	 Daniel
Kovacs	 Rebecca
Kratzer	 Natasha
Kronborg	 Erik
Kronborg	 Mia
La Roche	 Justine
La Roche	 Paul
Lacey	 Morgan
Lacy	 Christine
Laird	 Sarah
Lamb	 David
Lamb	 Katie
Landers	 Jessica
Landers	 Steve
Lands	 Alicia
Lands	 Simon
Lane	 Alison
Larking	 Amy
Laudato	 Loretta
Law	 Meg
Lee	 Jenny
Legena	 Susanne
Leslie	 Fleur
Leslie	 Mike
Lever Davidson	 Julia
Leviny	 Tim
Leviny	 Vanessa
Lillis	 Judith
Lillis	 Thomas
Littleford	 Heidi
Littleford	 Mike
Livingston	 Anna
Livingston	 Brett
Livingston	 John
Livingston	 Kellie
Lo	 Philip
Long	 Prue
Long	 Ryan
Lovett	 Penny
Ludbrook	 Thomas
Lynch	 Erin
Lynch	 Shasta
Lyzinska	 Agnieszka
Macauley	 Ben
Macauley	 Colin
Macauley	 Maureen

Macgowan	 Brad
Macgowan	 Jessica
Magee	 Belinda
Magee	 Sam
Mahto	 Tooni
Mann	 Nick
Mapperson	 Karen
Mapperson	 Lewis
Marano	 Rachael
Markey	 Josh
Marriott	 Justin
Marron	 Marcus
Martin	 Alexander
Martin	 Mim
Martin	 Naomi
Mauderer	 Jennifer
Mazzotta	 Matthew
Mcallister	 Rachael
McCann	 Alice
Mccann	 Pete
Mccann	 Trudy
Mccarthy	 Maureen
McCarthy	 Michelle
McCarthy	 Stephen
Mcconchie	 Suzanne
McConnell	 Adam
McConnell	 Penny
McCorkell	 Catherine
McCorkell	 Ross
McCullagh	 Angela
Mcdonnell	 James
McGain	 Heather
McGain	 Pamela
McGregor	 Abigail
Mcguire	 James
Mcguire	 Rachael
Mcguire	 Sean
McHarg	 Anthony
McHarg	 Erika
McIntyre	 Jennifer
McKenzie	 Mark
Mckiernan	 Carolyn
Mckiernan	 Mark
McKinnon	 Debra
Mcleish	 Suleen
McLisky	 Adrienne
McMahon	 Michael
McNaughton	 Jennifer
McNee	 Matthew
McNee	 Michaela
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McPherson	 Marlene
Menze	 Carl
Menzies	 Ben
Menzies	 Shamiela
Merrington	 Jane
Metz	 Andrew
Middleton	 Andrew
Miles	 Chris
Miles	 Claire
Milic	 Katherine
Miller	 Joshua
Miller	 Lucy
Miller	 Solomon
Milroy	 Ryan
Mitchell	 Jane
Mitchell-Taverner	 Amanda
Mithen	 Anthony
Moller	 James
Moodie	 Catherine
Mooney	 Georgina
Mooney	 Jonathan
Moore	 Kade
Moore	 Tess
Moorfield	 Laura
Moorfield	 Nucharee
Morgan	 Yvette
Mulder	 Raoul
Mullen	 David
Murchie	 James
Murchie	 Jane
Murray	 Emily
Murray	 Hugh
Murray	 Kristine
Myconos	 George
Nankervis	 Angela
Nankervis	 Dayne
Nathan	 Philippa
Nathan	 Thomas
Neale	 Sharon
Neden	 Nat
Neesham	 Chris
Neo	 Clare
Neo	 Eugene
Ni Chuinneagain	 Siobhan
Nielsen	 Miriam
Nolan	 Jonathan
Nolan	 Kathryn
Notis	 Kathy
Oates	 Matthew
Oconnnor	 Kingsley

Odgers	 Melinda
Odgers	 Michael
O’Donaghue	 Karly
O’Donaghue	 Kym
O’Driscoll	 Paul
O’Dwyer	 Georgina
O’Dwyer	 Samuel
O’Keefe	 Catherine
Oldland	 James
O’Leary	 Catrina
O’Leary	 Tim
O’Loughlin	 Francis
Orner	 Michael
O’Sullivan	 Naomi
Palmer	 Sandy
Pangrazio	 Mark
Parr	 David
Parr	 Gabrielle
Partridge	 Adam
Pattison	 Justin
Permezel	 Juliette
Phang	 Jay
Phelan	 Megan
Phelan	 Peter
Picken	 Douglas
Pitsopoulos	 Christian
Plank	 Paul
Pollard	 James
Pollard	 Nina
Polykandrites	 Ezra
Poy	 Gabrielle
Quinlivan	 Darren
Quinlivan	 Julia
Reddan	 John
Reddy	 Rod
Reddy	 Tracy
Reed	 Ian
Reed	 Liz
Reese-Hackford	 Claire
Rice	 Sophie
Richards	 Sophie
Richardson	 Alison
Richardson	 Angus
Roberts	 Brad
Robertson	 Gordon
Robertson	 Nancy
Robinson	 Felicity
Rodd	 Jim
Ronaldson	 Catherine
Ronaldson	 Michael

Rosewarne	 Sam
Ruddock	 James
Rundle	 Amber
Rushen	 Alexander
Rushen	 Tiffany
Russell	 John
Ryan	 Amy
Ryan	 Ed
Saliba	 Sebastian
Saliba	 Stephanie
Sallabank	 Jennifer
Sambell	 Julian
Sambell	 Lucy
Savva	 Spyros
Saw	 Fiona
Schembri	 Dylan
Schembri	 Stephen
Schokman	 Ben
Schultz	 Mark
Schuppan	 Rohan
Selig	 Steve
Shearer	 Craig
Shearer	 Robina
Shenfield	 Laressa
Shovelton	 Rachel
Shovelton	 Tim
Simpson	 Jan
Simpson	 Paul
Simpson	 Thomas
Siviter	 Jeff
Siviter	 Tracey
Skelley	 Miranda
Slater	 Daniel
Smith	 Catherine
Smith	 Joanna
Smith	 Julian
Smith	 Michael
Soldaini	 Julia
Speekman	 Robert
Speller	 Nicolas
Speller	 Sharyn
Sprawling	 Nici
Stanford	 Sue
Stanley	 Brian
Stanley	 Julie
Stapleton	 Kate
Stapleton	 Matt
Statham	 Kara
Statham	 Paul
Steel	 Andrew
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Steel	 Kim
Steinfort	 Daniel
Stewart	 Elly
Stewart	 Hayley
Strangward	 Jennifer
Strangward	 Warwick
Strauch	 Elizabeth
Strauch	 Jennifer
Suttle	 Andrea
Suttle	 Andrew
Sydenham	 Emma
Symington	 Carolyn
Symington	 Garth
Tait	 Julie
Tan	 Farrah
Taylor	 Jennifer
Taylor	 Kent
Taylor	 Leah
Taylor	 Mary
Taylor	 Nathan
Taylor	 Noelle
Thompson	 Amanda
Thompson	 Geoffrey
Thompson	 Jo
Thompson	 Julie
Thompson	 Rosie
Tindall	 Scott
Tingay	 David
Tobin	 Claire
Trezise	 Chris
Trotter	 Emmelinne
Tsokas	 Noah
Unsworth	 Kate
Unsworth	 Nicholas
Uota	 Pauline
Ussher	 Richard
Ussher	 Tennille
Van Beek	 Marc
Van Duyn	 Tessa
Van Dyke	 Damian
Van Dyke	 Sarah
Van Rooyen	 Annette
Veale	 Judith
Vereker	 Duncan
Vernon	 Ellen
Vernon	 Scott
Vesey	 Eliza
Vesey	 Timothy
Vine	 Dale
Vine	 Sophie

Wadey	 Andrew
Waite	 Jacqueline
Waite	 Peter
Waldie	 Natalie
Walker	 Catherine
Walker	 David
Walker	 Lesley
Walker	 Luke
Wallis	 Petrice
Walsh	 Brent
Walsh	 Kylie
Walsh	 Mietta
Waters	 Ken
Watkins	 Andrew
Watkins	 Kristin
Webb	 Ailsa
Webb	 Stuart
Weller	 Peter
Wendt	 Kylie
Wendt	 Tim
West	 Emma
White	 Ben
White	 Brianna
White	 Caro
White	 James
White	 Patricia
Wilcox	 Sally
Wilson	 Glenn
Wilson	 Justin
Wojniusz	 Melinda
Wojniusz	 Shane
Woodgate	 John
Woodgate	 Marlena
Wright	 Jane
Wuchatsch	 Anna
Young	 Elizabeth
Zagame	 Anita
Zagame	 Daniel
Zed	 Belinda
Zed	 Nick
Zulli	 Melissa

CADET MEMBER (13-15YRS)
Bare	 Zara
Black	 Alexander
Blackman	 Sam
Blake	 Chloe
Bone	 Ted
Brammer-Flores	 Remi
Brant	 Hunter

Bratuskins	 Sophie
Brown	 Toby
Byrne	 Freya
Callow-Sussex	 Flynn
Campbell	 Eliza
Carlson	 Charlie
Carrington	 Tilly
Chandrasekara	 Anthony
Clark	 Hamish
Cole	 Georgie
Crozier	 James
Davidson	 Thomas
Denton	 Adele
Doyle	 Harry
Emery	 Skye
Farah	 David
Farmer	 Caleb
Farrow	 Archibald
Fawcett	 Dexter
Fisher	 Marielle
Fitzgerald	 Chloe
Flack	 Charlie
Foley	 Blake
Foran	 Darcy
Forster	 Ginger
Fraser	 Hamish
Fraser	 Ruby
Gilbert	 Fitzwilliam
Gowans	 Phoebe
Hadley	 Isabelle
Haigh	 Charlie
Hall	 Ted
Hill	 Lexie
Hodder	 Peyton
Hume	 Jasmine
Hume	 Matilda
Huysing	 Nicholas
Inman	 Samantha
Jaggars	 Ava
James	 Edward
Jones	 Chloe
Jones	 Jimmy
Jones	 Leila
Jones	 Tadhg
Jovanovic	 Bella
Keenan	 James
Kelly	 Mackenzie
Lee-Evans	 Henry
Lenne	 Issy
Lomas-Mee	 Henrietta
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Ludbrook-Watt	 Mikah
Magee	 Albert
Maisey	 Grace
Marriott	 Jack
Marron	 Jacob
Martin	 Jensen
Mazzotta	 Sofia
Mccann	 Tessa
McConnell	 Zoe
McIntyre	 Grace
McKenzie	 Joshua
McNee	 Lucy
Mead	 Charlotte
Meadows	 Coco
Miller	 Eve
Mitchell	 Lysander
Mithen	 Isla
Mooney	 Polly
Moorfield	 Sienna
Moorfield	 Yasmine
Morgan	 Ellie
Morgan	 Summer
Mullen	 Lughan
Murchie	 Sophie
Neden	 Ben
Oates	 Olivia
O’Connell	 Rafferty
Odgers	 Kaitlyn
Orner	 Sarah
Pace	 Yasmin
Pappas	 Arabella
Parr	 Amelia
Partridge	 Isaac
Payne	 Izaac
Phelan	 Simone
Rebiere	 Louis
Reilly	 Jimmy
Rourke	 George
Ruddock	 Benjamin
Ruddock	 William
Sampson	 Luke
Saw	 Ava
Shearer	 Morgan
Short	 Olivia
Smith	 Benjamin
Speller	 Stephanie
Stanley	 Olivia
Stapleton	 David
Steinfort	 Maggie
Strangward	 Ella

Suttle	 Zoe
Symington	 Jemma
Tallott	 Thomas
Tannahill	 Jude
Teal	 Imogen
Thomas	 Emily
Tritton	 Georgie
Tritton	 Gus
Tritton	 Tom
Trotter	 Charley
Ussher	 Millicent
Van Beek	 Ben
Webb	 Dashiel
Weller	 Maisie
Weller	 Thomas
West	 Zoe
Wilson	 Remy
Wuchatsch	 Ben
Yockins	 Hudson

JUNIOR ACTIVITY MEMBER  
(5-13YRS)
Abbott	 Chloe
Ackland	 Eva
Adair	 Anouk
Alkan	 Armaan
Allen	 Benjamin
Allen	 Jessica
Arney	 Chloe
Arney	 Sophie
Artup	 Amelie
Ashby	 Alfie
Aspromonte	 Aurora
Attree	 Eddie
Avola	 Zara
Bahramis	 Tyler
Barbirotto	 Matteo
Barbirotto	 Mia
Barnes	 Isaac
Barons	 Harper
Basile	 Mackenzie
Basile	 Siddaley
Batchelor	 Lewis
Bates	 Annie
Beattie	 Eli
Beaven	 Clare
Beaven	 Philippa
Begley-Capon	 Alexis
Begley-Capon	 Austin
Bell	 Mila

Bell	 Xander
Bergamin	 Ari
Bone	 Max
Boyer	 Grace
Boyer	 Layla
Britton	 Hugo
Britton	 Otto
Brown	 Elliot
Brown	 Matilda
Brown	 Mitch
Brown	 Oliver
Brown	 Sam
Brown	 Zara
Buckley	 Theo
Bull	 Jack
Bull	 Zoe
Callow-Sussex	 Will
Carabott	 Alice
Carbines	 Ava
Cattanach	 Spencer
Cattanach	 Stanley
Chapman	 Ethan
Chapman	 Milly
Chapman	 Olivia
Charles	 Amelia
Charles	 Bobby
Charles	 Ruby
Chetcuti	 Oscar
Chetcuti	 William
Childs	 Patrick
Childs	 Thomas
Chivers	 Alex
Chivers	 Hayden
Clements	 Ashton
Clements	 Lucy
Clements	 Mia
Collie Vastesaeger	 Auguste
Cooper	 Alex
Cooper	 Evelyn
Cooper	 Harrison
Copes	 Alice
Copes	 Benjamin
Cramond	 Eddison
Cristiano	 Michael
Crozier	 Madeleine
Cullie	 Isabella
Dale	 William
Daniell-Edwards	 Hugo
Davidson	 Josh
Davie	 Laerke
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Dawkins	 Ashley
Deledio	 Milla
Dillon	 Daniel
Dixon	 Hugo
Dixon	 Jemima
Downey	 Khalil
Downey	 Rafiq
Drake	 Charlie-Rose
Drake	 Oscar
Earey	 Nathan
Eaton	 Evelyn
Eaton	 Hadley
Fanning	 Jacob
Fanning	 Josh
Fanning	 Louis
Farah	 Scarlett
Farley	 Angus
Farley	 Henry
Farrow	 Jonathan
Farrow	 Walter
Fawcett	 Astrid
Feehan	 Archie
Feehan	 Isabelle
Fenton	 Beatrice
Fenton	 Mila
Fenton	 Sylvie
Fletcher	 Alfred
Fletcher	 Indigo
Foley	 William
Foran	 Edward
Foran	 Felix
Francis	 Bridie
Francis	 Cormac
Francis	 Finnegan
Fraser	 Max
Fraser	 Ryan
Furlan	 Hunter
Furlan	 Oliver
Gbikpi-Benissan	 Elikem
Gbikpi-Benissan	 Michaela
Gelt	 Sebastian
Gerrans	 Isla
Gerrans	 Oscar
Gilbert	 Freddie
Gilbert	 Mary-Jane
Gill	 Penelope
Gomez	 Mackenzie
Gooday	 Angus
Gooday	 Ruby
Gow	 Griffin

Gow	 Sasha
Gowans	 Annabel
Gray	 Rhea
Grayson	 Albert
Grayson	 Charlotte
Grayson	 Michael
Greaney	 Finn
Greaney	 William
Gredler	 Hugh
Gredler	 Max
Griffiths	 Jackson
Gross	 Finn
Gross	 Mae
Gross	 Violet
Hadley	 Charlotte
Hadley	 James
Hall	 Rosie
Halpin	 Abby
Halpin	 Jack
Ham	 Teddy
Hamilton	 Annabel
Hamilton	 Hannah
Hammond	 Elodie
Hammond	 Otis
Hannan	 Anouk
Hannan	 Isabelle
Hannan	 Matilda
Hansen	 Nilu
Hardwick	 Archer
Hardwick	 Lewis
Hardwick	 Lola
Hardwick	 Olivia
Hardwick	 Paige
Hardwick	 Sophie
Harper	 Aisla
Harper	 Niamh
Haseler	 Caitlin
Haseler	 Charlie
Haseler	 Toby
Hassett	 Lachlan
Hassett	 Quinn
Hede	 Edward
Hede	 Eleanor
Hede	 Leo
Hede	 Liam
Hickey	 Finn
Hill	 Lucy
Hogan	 Pippa
Hose	 George
Hose	 Gwendolyn

Hose	 Harry
Houghton-Manks	 Isabelle
Houghton-Manks	 Sophie
Howell	 Francesca
Howell	 Otto
Hume	 Isobel
Hume	 Zoe
Hunter	 Kira
Inglis	 Eliza
Inglis	 Freddie
Inglis	 Isabelle
Inman	 William
Isakhan	 Thomas
Jaggars	 Isabel
Jelbart	 Abigail
Jelbart	 Milly
Jelbart	 Tom
Jones	 Daisy
Jones	 Fleur
Jones	 Quinn
Jordan	 Willow
Joseph	 Alessandra
Jovanovic	 Millie
Jurcevic	 Gemma
Jurista	 Adele
Jurista	 James
Kauffman	 Lara
Kaye	 Brodie
Kelly	 Darby
Kelly	 Harper
Kennedy	 Jed
Keys	 Abigail
Keys	 Evelyn
Knights	 Jude
Kronborg	 Phoebe
La Roche	 Levi
La Roche	 Xavier
Lamb	 Charlie
Landers	 Matilda
Lands	 Eden
Laudato	 Julian
Lee-Evans	 Eliza
Legena	 Orla
Lenne	 Emma
Leslie	 Mack
Littleford	 Hugo
Lo-Bromley	 Mabel
Long	 Archer
Long	 Sierra
Macauley	 Brett
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Macauley	 Ned
Macgowan	 Ava
Macgowan	 Ruby
Magee	 Hamish
Magee	 Imogen
Mapperson	 Anna
Mapperson	 Isla
Markey	 Pepa
Markey	 Woody
Marriott	 Kai
Marron	 Lena
Marsh	 Charlotte
Marsh	 Harrison
Martin	 Avery
Martin	 Eloise
Martin	 Payton
Mcallister-Hughes	 Asher
Mcallister-Hughes	 Quinn
Mcallister-Hughes	 Taavi
Mccann	 Joshua
Mccann	 Lotti
Mccann	 Ruby
McCarthy	 Toby
Mcconchie	 Sebastian
McConnell	 Ava
Mcconnell	 Cohen
Mcconnell	 Maya
Mcdonnell	 Tessa
McGilton	 Chloe
Mcgrane	 Samson
Mcguire	 Charlie
Mcguire	 Imogen
Mcguire	 Leo
Mckiernan	 Nicholas
Meacock	 Isla
Menze	 Raphael
Menzies	 Hutch
Metz	 Cressida
Metz	 Edwin
Metz	 Violet
Middleton	 Jessica
Miles	 Benjamin
Miller	 Emlyn
Miller	 Frenchy
Miller	 Mary
Miller	 Sinclair
Miller	 Sunny
Milroy	 Aden
Mitchell	 Miles
Mitchell-Taverner	 Emelie

Mitchell-Taverner	 Isabella
Mitchell-Taverner	 Molly
mithen	 freya
Molan	 Minnie
Moller	 Elke
Moller	 Felix
Moore	 Chester
Moorfield	 Noah
More	 Jack
Moreton	 Christina
Morgan	 Byron
Mullen	 Fionn
Mullen	 Odhran
Murray	 Daniel
Murray	 Summer
Murray	 Taylor
Murray	 Xavier
Nankervis	 Arlo
Nankervis	 Ava
Nankervis	 Max
Nankervis	 Zara
Nathan	 Elizabeth
Nathan	 Emily
Neale	 Fletcher
Neale	 Georgia
Neale	 Hayden
Neden	 Emma
Neden	 Sophie
Neesham	 Zen
Nolan	 Oscar
Odgers	 Richard
O’Dwyer	 Annabelle
O’Dwyer	 Henry
Oldland	 Poppy
Oldland	 Sophie
O’Leary	 Joseph
Orchard	 Hunter
Orchard	 Jade
Orner	 Peta
O’Sullivan	 Bella
Pangrazio	 Callum
Pangrazio	 Lachlan
Parr	 Eliza
Parr	 Tessa
Partridge	 Abbey
Partridge	 Lily
Partridge	 Olivia
Pattison	 Edith
Pattison	 Edward
Phang	 Rex

Phelps	 Arthur
Pitsopoulos	 Amelie
Pitsopoulos	 Lucie
Plank	 Leon
Pollard	 Anna
Pollard	 Edward
Quinlivan	 Lucy
Ragg	 Hannah
Ragg	 Patrick
Rankin	 Scout
Rebiere	 Lola
Reddy	 Harry
Reddy	 Isabelle
Reed	 Jake
Reed	 Lucy
Reed	 Matilda
Reither	 Amanda
Roberts	 Sailor
Robertson	 Ella
Robertson	 Harry
Robertson	 Jackson
Robertson	 Tommy
Rodd	 Archie
Rodd	 Levi
Rosewarne	 Emily
Rosewarne	 Ted
Ross	 Ryan
Rushen	 Charles
Ryan	 Daisy
Ryan	 Molly
Ryan	 Ned
Ryan	 Patrick
Ryan	 Vivian
Ryan	 Will
Saliba	 Madeleine
Saliba	 Odessa
Sambell	 Alfie
Sambell	 Indie
Savva	 Adam
Savva	 Jacob
Saw	 Alfie
Saw	 Lenni
Schokman	 Bonnie
Schokman	 Lilka
Schultz	 Fletcher
Schultz	 Rory
Schuppan	 Raphael
Seaward	 Leo
Shanahan	 Archie
Shanahan	 Lucy
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Shenfield	 Maisie
Shenfield	 Samuel
Shovelton	 Margaret
Shovelton	 Philippa
Simpson	 Grace
Simpson	 William
Sissons	 Julia
Sissons	 Rachel
Siviter	 Ashlyn
Siviter	 Harry
Slater	 Edward
Smith	 Abigail
Smith	 Andy
Smith	 Camilla
Smith	 Timothy
Soldaini	 Jaxson
Speekman	 Phoebe
Speekman	 Raphael
Speekman	 Sebastian
Spinks	 Eloise
Spinks	 Fergus
Sprawling	 Grace
Sprawling	 Noah
Staines	 Isobel
Stanley	 Tom
Stapleton	 Joshua
Statham	 Frank
Steel	 Darcy
Steinfort	 Finn
Steinfort	 Rory
Stewart	 Archie
Stewart	 Thea
Stewart	 Wilbur
Stewart	 Winnie
Symington	 Indigo
Tannahill	 Sebastian
Taylor	 Kate
Taylor	 Meg
Taylor	 Morgan
Theodore	 Evie
Thomas	 Madeline
Thomas	 Rafael
Thomas	 Saskia
Tindall	 Mae
Tindall	 Teddy
Trotter	 Miley
Unsworth	 Abigail
Unsworth	 Zachary
Ussher	 Henry
Van Dyke	 Xavier

Vastesaeger	 Ernest Collie
Vereker	 Maggie
Vernon	 Owen
Vernon	 Sophie
Vesey	 Charlie
Vine	 Shepherd
Vine	 Van
Waddington	 Caitlin
Waddington	 Claire
Wadey	 Asha
Waldie	 Amelia
Waldie	 Samantha
Walker	 Patrick
Walker	 Rupert
Walsh	 Harry
Walsh	 Oscar
Watkins	 Liam
Watkins	 Zachary
Webb	 Alexander
Webb	 Alexander
Webb	 Matthew
Wendt	 Lucas
Wendt	 Patrick
West	 Grace
White	 Finn
White	 Frankie
White	 Lachie
White	 Lola
White	 Millie
White	 Sadie
Wilson	 Banjo
Wilson	 Lucy
Wojnisuz	 Brody
Wojniusz	 Brody
Wojniusz	 Liam
Wojniusz	 Tyler
Woodgate	 Liam
Woodgate	 Tyson
Wuchatsch	 Lachlan
Wuchatsch	 Tim
Young	 Benjamin
Yunghanns	 Edward
Yunghanns	 Leo
Zagame	 Luca
Zed	 Lachlan
Zed	 Rory

LONG SERVICE
Bird	 Melissa
Brennan	 Callum

Carr	 Richard
Cullity	 Julia
Hartshorne	 Ryan
Hearne	 Paul
Hume	 Samuel
Larke	 Stuart
Lewtas	 Abby
Marsh	 Bronwyn
Marshall	 Naantali
McGain	 Ian
McNamara	 Deanna
Moore	 Emma
Morgan	 Ivor
Nolan	 Ryan
Peasnell	 Ross
Plant	 Malcolm
Tannahill	 Scott

RESERVE ACTIVE
Boyer	 Laura
Carlson	 Bengt
Taylor	 Matthew
Anghie	 Matthew

ACTIVE (18YRS & OVER)
Aspromonte	 Gabriele
Bailey	 Sam
Banks-Anderson	 Edwina
Bare	 Stephanie
Barr	 Cameron
Barr	 Eleanor
Beale	 Saxon
Betson	 James
Bills	 Alice
Black	 James
Bourke	 Fioran
Boyce	 Catherine
Boyce-Elliott	 Olivia
Bryce	 Donald
Buckley	 Gillian
Burke	 Kirra
Burke	 Rhianna
Butler	 Camilla
Cameron	 Jack
Cameron	 Matilda
Campbell	 Jake
Campbell	 Matilda
Campbell	 Scarlett
Cardwell	 Christine
Cartwright	 Wayne
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Caulfield	 Sidney
Chan	 James
Chesterfield	 Alec
Chisholm	 Rebecca
Christofi	 Stephen
Clarke	 Mitchell
Clayton	 Mark
Cole	 Molly
Cole	 Ned
Cooney	 Megan
Cooney	 Sean
Cooney-Hunt	 Eleanor
Cooper	 Stephen
Cullen	 Thomas
Dale	 Mikaela
Dane	 Edwina
Davison	 Emily
Davison	 Neve
Denton	 Simon
Dickson	 Greta
Dyson	 Lily
Eaton	 Lachlan
Edwards	 Oliver
Emmerson	 Andrew
Farrington	 Jeremy
Fitzgerald	 Dibdin
Fitzgerald	 Fiona
Fitzgerald	 John
Flores	 Paola
Foley	 Joshua
Foley	 Millicent
Fry	 Jasmine
Fry	 Paul
Gilbert	 Ben
Gowans	 Bianca
Graham	 Frederica
Gratwick	 Manning
Haigh	 Simon
Hannan	 Jack
Harris	 Sarah
Hickey	 Noah
Higlett	 Kate
Hill	 Victoria
Howden	 Lisa
Howden	 Max
Howden	 Tamara
Hume	 Madeleine
Humphreys	 Rachael
Huysing	 Connor
Huysing	 Rafferty

Jeffrey	 Laura
Jurcevic	 Mia
Kay	 David
King	 Emily
King	 Lachlan
King	 Peter
Kontelj	 Davis
Kroyherr	 Erik
Langford	 Elise
Larkin	 Stephanie
Lawson	 Alexander
Lawson	 Finn
Lee	 Pierre
Leviny	 Alexander
Livingston	 John
Luszczak	 Timothy
Mackay	 Edward
Mackay	 Ned
Madeley	 Alexandra
Maisey	 David
Manks	 John
Mason	 Annabel
Mason	 Timothy
Mauderer	 Aleisha
Mauderer	 Max
Mavity	 James
May	 Jack
McCoombe	 Lachlan
McGilton	 Shaun
Mcgrane	 Cameron
McHarg	 Hugh
McLisky	 Ben
Moodie	 Hugh
Moorfield	 Alicia
Morgan	 Jacob
O’Driscoll	 Amy
O’Driscoll	 Liam
Owen	 Kate
Pearce	 Harry
Penney	 Thomas
Pereira	 William
Phelps	 Nicholas
Phillips	 Julia
Popovic	 William
Porter	 James
Purcell	 Sophie
Ranogajec	 Miles
Rechtman	 Andrew
Reither	 Hayley
Reither	 Kristin

Renney	 Wilbur
Rice	 Holly
Rigg	 Andrew
Robinson	 Isabella
Ross-Smith	 Luke
Ruddock	 Susan
Sallabank	 Lachlan
Scarff	 Sophia
Shaw	 Hannah
Simpson	 David
Simpson	 Tessa
Skinner	 Sophia
Solly	 Lachlan
Solly	 Owen
Solly	 William
Speller	 Edward
Spinks	 Simon
Spitaleri	 Tiffany
Staines	 Angus
Stanford-Clark	 Stella
Stobie	 Jack
Taylor	 Olivia
Taylor	 William
Tennant	 Lauren
Tennant	 Rob
Thornton	 Jemma
Turner	 Xavier
Ussher	 Annabelle
Ussher	 William
Walker	 Kate
Wallace	 Lucy
Waters	 Lucas
White	 Zoe
Wight	 Ricky
Wilkinson	 Hanna
Wilkinson	 Marli
Withers	 Sylvie
Wood	 Bridie
Wraith	 Bailey
Yockins	 Ryan

ACTIVE JUNIOR (15-18YRS)
Adams	 Ben
Allsop	 Luke
Aspromonte	 Lucas
Bare	 Madeleine
Barons	 Matilda
Blackman	 James
Blake	 Amelia
Boyce-Elliott	 Benjamin
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Brammer-Flores	 Maya
Brant	 Ella
Bratuskins	 Benjamin
Butler	 Xavier
Chisholm	 Trent
Chivers	 Eliza
Clark	 Charlotte
Clausen	 Finn
Clausen	 Stacy
Cooney Hunt	 Nessa
Cornish	 Ruby
Crozier	 Sebastian
Dalton	 Jack
Davidson	 Madeline
Doyle	 Meagan
Emery	 Kane
Farmer	 Annabelle
Faull	 Georgia
Fisher	 Natalie
Fitzgerald	 Jemima
Flack	 Laura
Foley	 Angus
Foley	 Charlotte
Foley	 Mitchell
Forster	 Ben
Fraser	 Isabel
Fry	 Cooper
Gossan	 William
Graham	 Claudia
Haigh	 Bella
Hall	 Charles
Hally	 Theadora
Hamilton	 Matthew
Harrington	 William
Hart	 Sophie
Hennessy	 Hugo
Hickey	 Amelie
Hill	 Nick
Hope	 Olivia
Hudson	 Jethro
Hume	 Charlie
Jackson	 Anika
Jackson	 Anna
Jackson	 Eliza
Johnson	 Madeleine
Johnson	 Sam
Jones	 Liam
Jovanovic	 Tom
Jurcevic	 Oliver
Keenan	 Mackenzie

Kenny	 Patrick
Lawrie	 Isabel
Leslie	 Lili
Leviny	 Sam
Lillis	 Matthias
Livingston	 Paige
Lovell	 Tyler
Magee	 Frederick
Mann	 Annabelle
Mccann	 Lexi
McCarthy	 Benjamin
McCorkell	 Eddie
McCorkell	 Harry
Mcfarland	 Neve
McHarg	 Polly
McIntyre	 Matilda
McKenzie	 Charlotte
McLisky	 James
McNee	 Claudia
Mooney	 Jack
Munro	 Matt
Neo	 Oliver
O’Connell	 Sonny
O’Donnell	 Noah
O’Driscoll	 Frances
Orner	 Henry
Pappas	 Miles William
Parker	 Cameron
Phelan	 Chloe
Purcell	 Charlie
Reither	 Mitchell
Richardson	 Hamish
Richardson	 Lucy
Roberts	 Charlie
Robinson	 Darcie
Rundle	 Emma
Scanlan	 Rory
Scheier	 Jackson
Sharples	 Gavan
Shears-Jones	 Alexander
Silluzio	 Dakota
Speller	 Christian
Spitaleri	 Aidan
Stanford-Clark	 Walter
Stanley	 Cooper
Steinfort	 Liam
Symington	 Chloe
Thomas	 Robert
Tregaskis	 Cam
Turner	 Charmaine

Ussher	 Eleanor
Warers	 Louis
Webb	 Luca
Yockins	 Baxter
Zicman	 Max

SOCIAL PASS HOLDERS 2022/23
NON-MEMBER PARTICIPANTS 
2022/23
Alderson	 Ann
Allan	 Michelle
Allan	 Ross
Beattie	 Paul
Betts	 Michael
Black	 Bill
Bolton	 Heather
Brown	 Michael
Burgess	 Bob
Burgess	 Jean
Canale	 Helen
Catterall	 Helen
Cavanagh	 Victoria
Cherry	 Richard
Chivers	 Margaret
Christou	 John
Clancy	 Julia
Couch	 Dennis
Dalton	 Delyce
Durrant	 Ian
Durrant	 Linda
Eckersley	 Ann-Maree
Eckersley	 Ross
Edwards	 Denise
Ferraro	 Kelly
Foley	 Laurie
Foley	 Lorraine
Gilbert	 Steve
Grutzner	 Kate
Gullock	 Scott
Gullock	 Tara
Hally	 Anthony
Herold	 Jenny
Hicks	 Georgia
Hillyer	 Paul
Hillyer	 Suzanne
Hunt	 Angela
Hunter	 Adrian
Jones	 Andrew
Jones	 Rosemarie
Jurcevic	 Helen
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Jurcevic	 Jo
Kagi	 Douglas
Keating	 John
Kernick	 Lucy
Leggo	 Diane
Lewis	 Richard
Lomas	 Jacqui
MacVean	 Annika
Marshall	 Ross
Martin	 Carol
McClure	 Greg
Mcgrath	 Mark
Mcintyre	 Shane
McMillan	 Allen
Mcnamee	 Dennise
Mcnamee	 Kevin
Meaden	 James
Meaden	 Janene
Mee	 Stefan
Mock	 Katrina
Nancarrow	 Claire
Neden	 Lara
Norman	 Bryce
O’Connell	 Eamon
O’Connell	 Jen
Olsen	 Liz
Olsen	 Nick
O’Neill	 Jeff
Paton	 Margaret
Pearce	 Hugh
Phillips	 Tim
Rayner	 Paul
Rice	 Alannah
Roberts	 Allan
Russell	 Kate
Saunders	 Andrew
Shaw	 Matthew
Simpson	 Andrew
Simpson	 Glenda
Smith	 Bradley
Smith	 Ian
Turner	 Terry
Walker	 Catriona
Walker	 Russell
Wark	 David
West	 Damian
Williams	 Richard
Young	 David

MEMBERSHIP LISTINGS 2022/23
GENERAL
Anderson	 Bruce
Bent	 Kevin
Bews	 Stephen
Carr	 Michael
Chin-Jewson	 Jacquelene
Clark	 Jonathan
Clements	 Anthony
Collie	 Sarah
Dickson	 Fiona
Downey	 Andrew
Doyle	 Wendy
Fitzpatrick	 Karla
Fletcher	 Nick
Foley	 Christopher
Forster	 Jonathan
Foster	 Zoe
Fraser	 Darren
Fraser	 Mark
Gardiner	 Louise
Hickey	 Justin
Hickey	 Tanya
Holman	 Ian
Hudson	 Paul
Inglis	 Soren
Inman	 Blake
Jackson	 Sarah
Jovanovic	 Simon
Kay	 Baxter
Keenan	 Matthew
Kelly	 Nicholas
Kennedy	 Therese
Kidd	 Stephen
Langford	 Noel
MacVean	 Fraser
Martin	 Adam
Mason	 Vanessa
McCann	 Sally
McCann	 Thomas
McHarg	 Grace
Molan	 Ellie
Moorfield	 Benjamin
Moorfield	 Simon
More	 Timothy
Moreton	 David
Murdoch	 Graeme
Murray	 Robert

Neale	 Rodney
Niblett	 Benjamin
Orchard	 Scott
Phillips	 William
Pitcher	 Caroline
Pitsopoulos	 Julia
Ragg	 Joseph
Ramp	 Hetti
Ramp	 Oswald
Rau	 Jonathan
Rice	 Will
Richardson	 Claire
Richardson	 Emily
Rundle	 David
Sallabank	 Campbell
Saw	 Adam
Saw	 Elise
Shenfield	 Richard
Siedle	 Grant
Smith	 James
Solly	 Melinda
Stott	 Derek
Sutherland	 James
Taylor	 Damian
Taylor	 Jarrod
Taylor	 Lilly
Taylor	 Ruth
Thomas	 Alasdair
Thomas	 Helen
Tivendale	 Andrew
Waddington	 Andrew
Watsford	 Emily
West	 Michael
Wilson	 Kylie
Yunghanns	 Guy
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Elizabeth (Liz) Margot Randall formerly Foster née Fullwood 
16/4/1934 - 15/5/2023

Anglesea SLSC was sorry to hear of Liz’s passing on May 15, 2023. 
Liz was a longstanding supporting member of the Club as a club 
Patron 2013-2017 and Mother & Grandmother of Life Saving 
Bronze holders. We will miss her interest and support and hope her 
family’s connection will continue.

John Talbot Ashenhurst

India 7/1/1939; Died Coffs Harbour 20/10/2022

Joined ASLSC 27/11/1963; Bronze Medallion 8/12/1963 - V1801

‘Ash’ created our iconic ASLSC crest. Any member or visitor will pass 
this crest many times in our club rooms or on stationery and gear.

‘Ash’ was a talented world famous creative artist and photographer 
who shot the photo at the 1964 Anglesea Carnival, a commission 
from General Motors Holden to launch the ‘EH’ Holden station 
wagon, which has now featured on  calendars world wide.

John rowed Senior ‘B’ Surfboat in:

1963/64 with Howard Park, Ajax Sutherland, John Ashenhurst, 
Robert Proudfoot with sweeps Mal Seccull, John Sneesby

1965/66 with John Baldock, Tony Kewish, John Ashenhurst, Ajax 
Sutherland with sweep Bob Harding.

On 15/12/1966 John transferred to Pt Lonsdale SLSC where he was 
a member of their boat crews.

Work took ‘Ash’ to Sydney where he continued a long and 
successful career with several Northern Beaches’ clubs as a sweep.

ASLSC boaties always caught up with ‘Ash’ at the Aussies in 
subsequent years. He was always interested in his old club’s 
competition, particularly when ‘Fletch’ as sweep won the men’s 
U21 in 1997- crew Guy Anderson James Gowans, Christopher 
Gowans and Simon Allison

Alexander ‘Ajax’ Sutherland

Laurie Foley Anglesea SLSC acknowledges the passing of Laurie 
Foley 12/3/1946-11/5/2023, long time Associate and supportive 
Club Member Father of Chris, Jason and Jacinta and Grand Father 
of Active Lifesavers

VALES
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Committee's Report
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
For the year ended 30 April 2023

Your committee members submit the financial report  of the Anglesea Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. for the financial year ended 30
April 2023.

Committee Members

David Marsh (President)  

Noel Langford (Vice President - Operations) 

Rob Tennant (Vice President - Lifesaving)  

Rob Murray (Director - Administration)

Matilda Campbell (Club Captain) 

Emily Watsford (Director - Marketing) 

Max Mauderer (Director - Surf Sports) 

Matthew Taylor (Secretary) 

Sam Hume (Director - Youth Development) 

Angus Staines (Director - Finance) 

David Simpson (Director - Rescue Services) 

Lachlan Eaton (Director - Member Development) 

Peter Williams (Director - Facilities) 

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the club during the financial year were:

The provision of surf lifesaving services

Significant Changes

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

Operating Result

The deficit of the club amounted to $127,225

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Committee

 
David Marsh (President)

 

 
Angus Staines (Director - Finance)
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Trading Statement
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
For the year ended 30 April 2023

NOTES 2023 2022

Trading Income
Sale of goods

Sale of goods 56,313 59,970
Total Sale of goods 56,313 59,970

Cost of Good Sold
Opening stock 43,226 32,620

Purchases 27,690 39,743

Closing stock (44,700) (43,226)
Total Cost of Good Sold 26,216 29,137

Gross Profit 30,098 30,833

Gross Profit (%) 53 51
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Statement of Profit and Loss 
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
For the year ended 30 April 2023

NOTES 2023 2022

Income
Clubhouse Activities 122,639 88,754

Cafe Income 36,312 63,177

Development / Bronze Camp 31,173 44,786

Fundraising 97,349 38,625

Grant Income 55,577 92,476

Interest Received 2 2

Memberships 169,948 157,310

Other Income 63,437 77,736

Proceeds from Sale of Assets 364 1,372

Rent Received 15,091 12,391

Sponsorship / Donations 204,802 167,314

Gross Profit From Trading 30,098 30,833

Total Income 826,791 774,778

Expenses
Administration Expense 383,501 378,150

Bad and Doubtful Debts Expense 182 1,000

Bank Charges & Interest 71,850 48,070

Building Maintenance 25,387 23,795

Competition Expenses 23,271 24,463

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 246,791 271,092

Development Expenses 33,453 38,686

Fundraising / Club Functions / Bar 62,112 5,611

Other Expenses 104,528 123,757

Rescue Services 2,941 7,168

Total Expenses 954,016 921,790

Net Profit / (Loss) (127,225) (147,012)

Net Profit After Distribution (127,225) (147,012)
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Statement of Financial Position
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
As at 30 April 2023

NOTES 30 APR 2023 30 APR 2022

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 182,259 256,734

Trade and Other Receivables 5 14,176 13,207

Inventories 6 44,700 43,226

Other Current Assets 7 12,850 300
Total Current Assets 253,985 313,467

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 6,662,541 6,820,538
Total Non-Current Assets 6,662,541 6,820,538

Total Assets 6,916,527 7,134,005

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Payables 9 33,906 58,372

Provisions 10 19,179 4,601

Financial Liabilities 11 72,460 86,196
Total Current Liabilities 125,545 149,169

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 10 128 5,084

Financial Liabilities 11 1,208,746 1,270,418
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,208,873 1,275,502

Total Liabilities 1,334,418 1,424,671

Net Assets 5,582,109 5,709,334

Equity
Retained Earnings 5,582,109 5,709,334

Total Equity 5,582,109 5,709,334
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Statement of Cash Flows
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
For the year ended 30 April 2023

2023 2022

Operating Activities
Receipts from grants 61,135 98,580

Receipts from rental income 15,406 13,631

Receipts from customers 2,282,168 1,009,049

Payments to suppliers and employees (2,153,825) (964,863)

Interest received 2 2

Finance costs (72,030) (48,213)

GST (21,686) 6,492

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 111,170 114,678

Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4,445 1,559

Payment for property, plant and equipment (101,931) (39,090)

Other cash items from investing activities (12,750) -

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (110,236) (37,531)

Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 68,900 146,659

Repayment of borrowings (144,309) (188,706)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (75,409) (42,047)

Net Cash Flows (74,474) 35,100

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 256,734 221,634

Net change in cash for period (74,474) 35,100

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 182,259 256,734
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Statement of Changes in Equity
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
For the year ended 30 April 2023

2023 2022

Equity
Opening Balance 5,709,334 5,856,346

Increases
Profit for the Period (127,225) (147,012)
Total Increases (127,225) (147,012)

Total Equity 5,582,109 5,709,334
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
For the year ended 30 April 2023

1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

In the trustee's opinion, the Incorporated Association is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist uses of the
financial report who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their
information needs.  This special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of
the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101  Presentation
of Financial Statements, AASB 107  Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors and AASB1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.
The accounting policies that have been adopted in the preparation of the statements are as follows:

Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Div 50 of the Income Tax Assessment
Act 1997.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Inventories acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration are measured at the current replacement cost as at the date of
acquisition.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at the cost of acquisition less, if applicable, any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. The plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure that the carrying amount is not in
excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash
flows that will be received from the utilisation of the assets and the subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been
discounted to their present values in estimating recoverable amounts.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables, including distributions receivable, are recognised at the nominal transaction value
without taking into account the time value of money. If required a provision for doubtful debt has been created.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the association that remain unpaid at 30
April 2023. Trade payables are recognised at their transaction price. They are subject to normal credit terms and do not bear
interest.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers.
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon the delivery of the services to customers.
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Revenue from commissions is recognised upon delivery of services to customers.
Revenue from interest is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
Revenue from dividends is recognised when the entity has a right to receive the dividend.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Goods and Services Tax

Transactions are recognised net of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Employee Provisions

Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the association's obligation for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance
date.  Current employee provisions are those which employees are currently entitled to and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Non-current employee provisions are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. 
The expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, experience or employee departures and
periods of service, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the timing of the estimated future cash outflows.

The association's obligations for current employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are recognised as part of
accounts payable and other payables in the statement of financial position.

Contributions are made by the entity to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as expenses when incurred.

Grants

Grant revenue is recognised in the income statement when the entity receives the grant, when it is probable that the entity will
receive the economic benefits of the grant and the amount can be reliably measured.

If the grant has conditions attached which must be satisfied before the entity is eligible to receive the grant, the recognition of
the revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.

Where the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value back to the grant contributor, the transaction is considered a
reciprocal transaction and the revenue is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet until the required service has been
completed, otherwise the income is recognised on receipt.

Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Inc receives non-reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and other parties for a
nominal or zero value. These assets are recognised at their fair value on the date of acquisition in the balance sheet, with an
equivalent amount of income recognised in the income statement.

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.

Government Grants

Government grants received are recognised in the income statement when the entity receives the grant, when it is probable that
the entity will receive the economic benefits of the grant and the amount can be reliably measured.
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2. Resilience Fund

During the current financial year the club launched the 'Resilience Fund' with the ambition of raising a total of $1,000,000 over 10
years.

The fund has been established to ensure the Club has the appropriate resources, infrastructure and equipment to keep our
beaches safe. Additionally, the fund will support the Club to continue be a great community leader and to provide safe avenues
for our membership to learn beach and life skills, compete and/or participate in the running of our Club.

2023 2022

Resilience Fund
Balance 47,452 -

Total Resilience Fund 47,452 -

2023 2022

3. New Clubhouse Impact on Profit & Loss
Income

Donations 35,001 49,879

Grants - 11,461
Total Income 35,001 61,340

Expenditure
Bank Charges & Interest 68,900 44,569

Depreciation 152,289 214,998
Total Expenditure 221,189 259,567

Net Impact on Profit & Loss (186,188) (198,227)

Net Profit per Accounts (127,225) (147,012)

Adjusted Net Profit / (Loss) For Club Operations 58,963 51,215

2023 2022

4. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Bank Accounts

Restaurant Account 500 29,498

Bendigo Statement Account 181,646 224,734

Bendigo - Term Deposit Account - 2,441
Total Bank Accounts 182,146 256,673

Other Cash Items
Petty Cash 113 61
Total Other Cash Items 113 61

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 182,259 256,734

2023 2022

5. Receivables
Current
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Trade Debtors 4,696 11,364

Sundry Debtors - 1,281

GST 9,480 562
Total Current 14,176 13,207

Total Receivables 14,176 13,207

2023 2022

6. Inventory
Inventories 44,700 43,226

Total Inventory 44,700 43,226

2023 2022

7. Other Current Assets
Gift Cards Donated 100 300

Deposits 12,750 -

Total Other Current Assets 12,850 300

2023 2022

8. Property Plant and Equipment
Land and Buildings at Cost

Buildings at cost

New Clubhouse and Storage Site
New Clubhouse and Storage Site at Cost 6,555,234 6,514,426

Less Accumulated Depreciation (530,459) (378,170)
Total New Clubhouse and Storage Site 6,024,775 6,136,256

Property Improvements
Property Improvements 362,856 362,856

Less Accumulated Depreciation (102,319) (95,062)
Total Property Improvements 260,537 267,794

Total Buildings at cost 6,285,312 6,404,050

Total Land and Buildings at Cost 6,285,312 6,404,050

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment at cost 776,138 728,152

Accumulated depreciation (417,658) (335,365)
Total Plant and Equipment 358,480 392,787

Vehicles
Vehicles at cost 40,397 40,397

Accumulated depreciation (21,648) (16,696)
Total Vehicles 18,749 23,701

Total Property Plant and Equipment 6,662,541 6,820,538
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2023 2022

9. Payables
Current

Bendigo Credit Card 2,513 1,084

Trade Creditors 14,015 37,083

Bond Payable 4,600 500

Rental Bonds 2,000 2,000

PAYG Withholding 7,320 15,680

Superannuation Payable 3,458 2,025
Total Current 33,906 58,372

Total Payables 33,906 58,372

2023 2022

10. Provisions
Current

Provision for Annual Leave 8,860 1,445

Provision for Long Service Leave 10,319 3,156
Total Current 19,179 4,601

Non Current
Provision for Long Service Leave 128 5,084
Total Non Current 128 5,084

Total Provisions 19,307 9,685

2023 2022

11. Financial Liabilities
Current

Bendigo Business Flexi Loan 72,460 86,196
Total Current 72,460 86,196

Non Current
Bendigo Business Flexi Loan 1,208,746 1,270,418
Total Non Current 1,208,746 1,270,418

Total Financial Liabilities 1,281,205 1,356,614
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Financial Declaration of the Committee
ANGLESEA SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC
For the year ended 30 April 2023

The Committee declared that in the Committee's opinion:

• There are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all its debts, as and when they become
due and payable; and

• The financial statemens and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act
2012.

Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission Regulation 2013.

 
David Marsh (President)

 

 
Angus Staines (Director - Finance)

 

Sign date:
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Independent Audit Report to the Members of Anglesea Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc. 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 

Qualified Opinion 

 
I have audited the financial report of Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Inc. (‘the Association’) which 
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30th April 2023, Trading Statement, Statement of 
Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30th 
April 2023, Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, 
and the Financial Declaration of the Committee. 

 
In my opinion, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of this 
report, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the financial 
position of the Association as at 30th April 2023, and its financial performance for the year then 
ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements and 
the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 (Victoria). 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 

 

I did not attend the year-end stock take and was unable to perform alternative procedures to gain 
reasonable assurance over the balance of inventory held at 30th April 2023.  

 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of my report. I am independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting 
 
I draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial 
report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Committee Member’s financial reporting 
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responsibilities under the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 (Victoria). As a result, the 
financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter. 

 
Responsibilities of the Members of the Committee 

 
The committee is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 
2012 (Victoria) and for such internal control as the committee determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, the committee is responsible for assessing the association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the committee either intend to liquidate the Association or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

 

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Reporting Unit’s internal control. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Members of the Committee. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Committee Members’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw 
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attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Association to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and event in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Association to express an opinion on the financial report. I am 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Association audit. I remain solely 
responsible for my audit opinion. 

 
I communicate with the Members of the Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 
 

PAL Accounting & Advisory 
 

 
 
PETER A LANDERS FCPA FCANZ  
Director 

Registered Company Auditor No: 9159 

Geelong 
7th July 2023 
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Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Foundation Pty Ltd
For the year ended 30 April 2023

NOTES 2023 2022

Income
Franking Credits Refunded 2,899 1,743

Interest Received 245 -

Trust Distributions 27,541 23,253

Total Income 30,685 24,996

Total Income 30,685 24,996

Expenses
Auditors Remuneration 1,100 1,650

Bank Charges & Interest 414 414

Distribution to Club 30,000 19,392

Total Expenses 31,514 21,456

Net Current Surplus / (Deficit) (829) 3,540

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (829) 3,540
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Statement of Financial Position
Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Foundation Pty Ltd
As at 30 April 2023

NOTES 30 APR 2023 30 APR 2022

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 20,208 41,037
Total Current Assets 20,208 41,037

Non-Current Assets
Investments at Market Value 3 468,970 469,049
Total Non-Current Assets 468,970 469,049

Total Assets 489,178 510,086

Net Assets 489,178 510,086

Equity
Retained Earnings 442,208 443,037

Reserves 46,970 67,049

Total Equity 489,178 510,086
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Movements in Equity
Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Foundation Pty Ltd
For the year ended 30 April 2023

2023 2022

Equity
Opening Balance 510,086 484,794

Increases
Profit for the Period (829) 3,540

Revaluation reserves (20,079) 21,753
Total Increases (20,908) 25,293

Total Equity 489,178 510,086
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Statement of Cash Flows
Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Foundation Pty Ltd
For the year ended 30 April 2023

2023 2022

Cash flows from Operating Activities
Cash receipts from other operating activities 2,899 1,743

Cash payments from other operating activities (1,514) (2,064)

Total Cash flows from Operating Activities 1,385 (321)

Cash flows from Investing Activities
Dividends & distributions received 27,786 23,253

Payment for investments (20,000) -

Other cash items from investing activities - 4

Total Cash flows from Investing Activities 7,786 23,257

Cash flows from Other Activities
Distribution to Club (30,000) (8,392)

Total Cash flows from Other Activities (30,000) (8,392)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (20,829) 14,544

Cash Balances
Opening cash balance 41,037 26,493

Closing cash balance 20,208 41,037

Movement in cash (20,829) 14,544
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Foundation Pty Ltd
For the year ended 30 April 2023

1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

In the trustee's opinion, the Foundation is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist uses of the financial report who
are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their information needs.  This
special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the Australian Charities and
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of the
Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101  Presentation of
Financial Statements, AASB 107  Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and AASB1054 Australian Additional Disclosures

The accounting policies that have been adopted in the preparation of the statements are as follows:

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

The directors have considered going concern and believe the company can continue as a going concern. However, attention
should be drawn to the directors consideration of ceasing operations in the next 12 months. This consideration is not as a result
of the foundation being unable to realise its assets, or discharge its liabilities, in the normal course of business. The
consideration is given simply as a means of simplifying the financial affairs of the Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club.

 

Discussions around ceasing operations are ongoing and a decision will be made in the near future.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables, including distributions receivable, are recognised at the nominal transaction value
without taking into account the time value of money. If required a provision for doubtful debt has been created.

Financial Assets

Investments held are originally recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair
value which is equivalent to their market bid price at the end of the reporting period. Movements in fair value are recognised
through an equity reserve.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the company that remain unpaid at 30 April
2023. Trade payables are recognised at their transaction price. They are subject to normal credit terms and do not bear interest.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation resulting from past events, for which it is
probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions are measured
using the best estimate available of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

9
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and specific criteria relating to the type of revenue as noted below, has
been satisfied.

Revenue from interest is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
Revenue from dividends is recognised when the entity has a right to receive the dividend.

2023 2022

2. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Bank Accounts

Cash Management Account 20,182 41,012

Sandhurst Trustees 26 26
Total Bank Accounts 20,208 41,037

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 20,208 41,037

2023 2022

3. Financial Assets
Shares and debentures

Investments 422,000 402,000

Movement in Market Value 46,970 67,049
Total Shares and debentures 468,970 469,049

Total Financial Assets 468,970 469,049
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Directors Declaration
Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Foundation Pty Ltd
For the year ended 30 April 2023

The Directors declare that the trust is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report should be prepared in
accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements.

The Directors declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 1 to 8  present fairly the trust's financial position as at 30 April
2023 and its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including
Australian Accounting Interpretations); and

2. In the trustees’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the trust will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director: Mr David Marsh  ______________________________________

Director: Mr Angus Staines  _____________________________________

Sign date:
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Independent Audit Report to the Directors of Anglesea Surf Life 
Saving Club Foundation Pty Ltd as trustee for Anglesea Surf Life 
Saving Club Foundation 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 

Unmodified Opinion 

 
I have audited the financial report of Anglesea Surf Life Saving Club Foundation, which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30th April 2023, Statement of Profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, movements in equity for the year ended on that 
date, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and the directors declaration. 
 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial report has been prepared in accordance with Division 60 of 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 including: 
 
(a) Giving a true and fair view of the registered entity’s financial position as at 30th April 2023 and of 

its financial performance for the year then ended; and 
(b) Complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and Division 60 

of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Regulation 2013. 
 

Basis for Opinion 

 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of my report. I am independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. 
 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 
 
I draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates that the ongoing discussions about 
foundation to be wound up. As stated in Note 1, these events, or conditions, along with other matters 
as set forth in Note 1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the 
Foundation to continue as a going concern. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting 
 
I draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial 
report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Associations financial reporting 
responsibilities under the ACNC Act. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another 
purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
 

Responsibilities of the Responsible Entities for the Financial Report 

 
The responsible entities of the Association are responsible for the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view and have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 
to the financial report is appropriate to meet the requirements of the ACNC Act and the needs of the 
Association. The responsible entities’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the 
responsible entities determine is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report that gives a 
true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the financial report, the responsible entities are responsible for assessing the registered 
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the responsible entities either intend 
to liquidate the registered entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  

 

The responsible entities are responsible for overseeing the registered entity’s financial reporting 
process. 

 
 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

 
My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Reporting Unit’s internal control. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the responsible entities. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the responsible entities use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw 
attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Association to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and event in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
I communicate with the responsible entities regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 

 

I declare that I am an approved auditor, Fellow of CPA Australia and a Fellow of Chartered Accountants 
Australia and New Zealand and hold a current Public Practice Certificate. 

 
 
PAL Accounting & Advisory 

 

 
 
PETER A LANDERS, FCPA FCANZ  
Registered Company Auditor No: 9159 

Geelong 
7th July 2023 
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